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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Financial Summary and Highlights

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial

* statements, is set out below:
—EENE —TT=F —TT-F —TT—F —ITTTF
EE-AEE Results - Group 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e Turnover 41,123 39,872 71,820 112,572 63,603
HEDEA (E18) Profit (loss) before taxation 90,619 55,620  (111,711) (105,970)  (49,139)
SRR X Income tax expense (6,696) (237) (52) (106) -
Rt DB ER Profit (loss) before minority
AR (&E) interests 83,923 55,383 (111,763) (106,076)  (49,139)
DERE R Minority interests 471 2,103 5,782 3,260 1,048
RER & (FER) Net profit (loss) for
HEE the year 84,394 57,486 (105,981) (102,816) (48,091)
BEHAME-AKE  Assets and Liabilities — Group
BEE Total assets 680,767 603,188 23,725 567,797 522,058
BERERIY Total liabilities and minority
R R e interests (27,320) (34,142) (29,136) (541,283) (400,811)
BREES Shareholders’ equity 653,447 569,046 (5,411) 26,514 121,247

Geely Automobile Holdings Limited
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MBREREE

AEH The Group
rEE For the year
B (EEFT) Turnover (HK$'000)
wHEE (BEETr) Net Profit (HK$'000)

Bt Per share

FRERRF (Bil) Basic earning per share (HK Cents)
glRRs GEl) Dividend per share (HK Cents)
BREESE (BK) NAV per share (HK$)

FHR At year end
BRES (B¥Fr) Shareholders’ funds (HK$'000)
mEE (B¥Fr) Total assets (HK$'000)

BRITROEE Number of shares in issue
FARMNER Share price during the year
—&=E (B¥) ~ High (HK$)
—RIEKE (EK) — Low (HK$)

BiFS L & Financial ratios
EAABLE Gearing ratio
= (BE/BREL)(%) = (Borrowings/Shareholders’ funds) (%)
BEERHRE(%) Return on total assets (%)
IRERE £ ERE (%) Return on shareholders’ fund (%)

O 6 ¢ Annual Report 2004

—EENF
2004

41,123
84,394

2.0
1.0
0.16

653,447
680,767
4,120,264,902

1.110
0.345

1.6
124
12.9

Financial Summary and Highlights
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2003

39,872
57,486

1.6
0
0.14

569,046
603,188
4,120,264,902

0.92
0.34

3.7
9.5
10.1

B E FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Rl
#m/ CAd)
Change in
Percentage
Increase/
(Decrease)

3
47

25
N/A
14

15
13
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AEEMEEZHEQEF - BT EF A summary of the combined results and the assets and liabilities of

AEBR AT RIS MEE =S the Group’s major associates, namely Zhejiang Geely Automobile

AR &k EEELEERERRAGN Company Limited (formerly known as Zhejiang Geely Guorun

AU EEREERGERRIT Automobile Company Limited) and Shanghai Maple Guorun
Automobile Company Limited is set out below:

FEBENT Major Associates

BHRE-TEBREQNT

Combined Results — Major Associates

Bz HE
—EENF —EE=F
+=B=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
ILFEE 1FHAR

Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December

2004 2003
BETT TSR IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SR Turnover 2,311,016 1,032,004
HERA Costs of sales (1,931,075) (872,938)
SHE Sales Tax (30,277) (553)
EH Gross profit 349,664 158,513
HabFEEWA Other net operating income 46,629 19
DHMHEE N Distribution and selling expenses (60,075) (58)
1T E F Administration expenses (111,005) (9,299)
B E R Finance expenses (10,525) (2,868)
EiE R Profit from operations 214,688 146,307
FE2BIA Non-operating income 1,195 31
FEEER Non-operating expenses (1,853) (474)
PLAT R T Profit before taxation 214,030 145,864
Frigix i Income tax expenses (14,306) (507)
ARat DB AR AE LS A A Profit before minority interests 199,724 145,357
DEIR RS Minority interests 1,483 -
i H)HER Net profit 201,207 145,357
EVIES Gross profit margin 15.1% 15.4%
A= Net profit margin 8.7% 14.1%
IR E & BEHWE(%) Return on shareholders’ fund (%) 14.4% 12.2%

BEEDWRE(%) Return on total assets (%) 4.4% 7.1% .

CZNCLETs S Gearing ratio "

= (BB BEEL)(%) = (Borrowings/Shareholders’ funds) (%) 58.6% 42.7% &

}2

HEE (8) Sales volume (unit) 66,057 27,594 E

"

-

Geely Automobile Holdings Limited * 7 o
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EHEERABE -TEHEAQT

Combined Assets and Liabilities — Major Associates

—EZNEF —ET=F
+=—A=+—-8B +=—A=+—H
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
BT T TSI
HK$’000 HK$'000
EmBEE Non-current assets
L E RN Property, plant and equipment 1,513,250 822,232
HEMRHEE Other long-term assets 406,337 233,380
EES Goodwill 189,942 =
2,109,529 1,055,612
mENE = Current assets
FE Inventories 421,164 96,439
FEUWE 2 IR K Trade receivables 176,117 268,733
H b eI IR Other receivables 1,485,108 67,181
RITEBRIIRE Bank balances and cash 426,832 567,687
2,509,221 1,000,040
nEBE Current liabilities
eI E SRR Trade payables 1,284,716 230,267
RITEE Bank borrowing 263,654 =
H b e FIE Other payables 1,090,404 122,904
2,638,774 353,171
MEVEE (AfE) FAE Net current assets (liabilities) (129,553) 646,369
1,979,976 1,702,481
BAR K Capital and reserves
N Share capital 1,047,546 1,047,546
w5 Reserves 345,082 145,357
1,392,628 1,192,903
DHRR R Minority interests 35,405 -
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
BREF K Shareholder’s loans and
= HithRHAAE other long-term liabilities 551,943 509,578
=
= 1,979,976 1,702,481

# oW B
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Geely Automobile Holdings
Limited, | have the pleasure of presenting to you the Group’s 2004

results.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s turnover amounted to HK$41m for the year ended 31
December 2004, representing an increase of 3% over previous year.
Profit attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$84m, a significant
increase of 47% over 2003. The big increase in net profit was
attributable to the large increase in profit contributions from the
Group's two associates — Zhejiang Geely Automobile Company Limited
(“Zhejiang Geely”) and Shanghai Maple Guorun Automobile
Company Limited (“Shanghai Maple”) — a combined result of the
new profit contributions from a series of acquisitions during 2003-
2004 and the healthy natural growth achieved by the two associates
during the period.

DIVIDEND

After the reorganization over the past two years, the Group’s
transformation into automobile manufacturing business has largely
been completed. As a result, the Board plans to resume dividend
payment in 2004 and will recommend the payment of final dividend
of HK1 cent per share for 2004 (2003: nil).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

2004 was a difficult year for the automobile industry in China, featured
by the sharp slow down in vehicle sales since the second quarter of
2004 and the continuous downward pressure on car prices
throughout the year. Despite the challenges and difficulties in 2004,
the Group still managed to achieve respectable results, helped by
the group’s proven track record in cost control and the timely
response by the management to adjust business strategies and
implement new measures to alleviate the impact from a significantly

slower car market in China.
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Chairman’s Statement

Despite the implementation of new measures including the
restructuring of production facilities to improve economies of scale,
the postponement of capital expenditure programmes and new
product launches to ensure better utilization of resources, and various
stringent measures to cut costs, the Group still managed to achieve
better than average growth in sales volume and to offset most product
price declines with cost cutting, thus help maintaining the group’s
competitiveness in China’s car market, resulting in further increase

in our market share in China’s sedan market in 2004.

During 2004, the group’s major partner Geely Holding sold 96,693
units of Geely and Maple sedans, up 27% over 2003, gaining 4.2%
share in China’s passenger car market in 2004. Sales volume
attributable to the listed company amounted to 66,057 units in 2004,
up significantly by 139% from only 27,594 units in 2003, as a result
of the acquisition of Haoging series of automobile assets in July 2004,
the full year contributions of the group’s two associates — Zhejiang
Geely and Shanghai Maple — and the healthy natural growth of the
sales of Geely and Maple sedans in China. Zhejiang Geely and
Shanghai Maple, which produces and sell Geely and Maple sedans,

remained the key profit contributors of the group in 2004.

The Group’s 51%-owned parts subsidiary Zhejiang Fulin Guorun
Automobile Parts and Components Company Limited (“Zhejiang
Fulin”) recorded small loss in 2004 due to the deterioration in market
condition in China’s sedan market and thus the continuous pressure
on product prices throughout the year. This was however largely
offset by the significant cut in the group’s administrative expenses
after the group’s completed withdrawal from the information
technology (“IT”) businesses in March 2004. Despite this, Zhejiang
Fulin successfully launched a strategically important new steering
system, commonly known as “EPS” (Electric Power Steering), which
has been widely considered as one of the most advanced steering
system available in the market, thus paving the way for the group’s

entry into high value added auto parts market.

Geely Automobile Holdings Limited * 11 o
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group managed to complete the acquisitions of most of the
remaining auto-related assets from Geely Holding through its two
associates in July 2004, thus helping to broaden the group’s product
line to cover all the existing and future car models to be produced
by Geely Holding and to facilitate the subsequent restructuring of
the group’s production facilities to further improve its production
efficiency and cost competitiveness.

PROSPECTS
2005 should be an equally difficult year for the automobile industry

in China with major challenges like rapidly rising steel and raw
material prices, fierce competition due to the elimination of import
quota for motor vehicles at the beginning of 2005 and the further
reduction of import tariff rates, continuous pressure on product
pricing, high fuel prices, traffic congestion in major cities, and
increasingly stringent regulations on emission control, vehicle safety
and the protection on car buyers’ interests in China. Despite this,
the group is amongst the best prepared for the challenges ahead
with the timely adjustments implemented last year and Geely
Holding’s proven cutting edges in management flexibility and cost

control.

In 2005, the groups’ two associates plan to produce and sell 120,000
units of vehicles and to complete the technological upgrading at the
companies’ four production bases, thus lifting their combined annual
production capacity to 300,000 units. In addition, the two companies
plan to launch new sedan models equipped with the 1.6L and 1.8L
engines, a new series of automatic gearboxes and the right-hand
drive version for some of their existing models during the year to
further broaden their product lines and improve their competitiveness

of their products.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Board believes that the current downturn of China’s sedan market
should represent more an opportunity than challenges to the group
given its distinctive advantages in cost control and flexibility, largely
as a result of the company’s private enterprise status, its unique
structure of a completed vertically integrated operation, spanning
from R&D, auto parts, power train design and manufacturing to final
assembly of sedans. Despite the slow down in the growth of car
demand in China in 2004, the Board remains confident that long-

term demand for sedans could continue to grow fast in China.

To further improve the group’s competitiveness, the management
will continue to explore new business opportunities for new sources
of revenues, way to share and reduce costs and business risks, and
way to further improve efficiency and competitiveness. With the more
efficient business and corporate structures, improved production
facilities and more comprehensive product lines brought about by
the restructuring and the acquisitions over the last two years, the
Board believes that the group’s profitability and its shareholders’

returns should continue to improve in the coming years.

He Xuechu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 April 2005

Geely Automobile Holdings Limited * 13 O
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Management Discussion & Analysis

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

Despite the slowdown in the growth of sedan sales volume in China
since the second quarter of 2004, the group’s two associates —
Zhejiang Geely and Shanghai Maple — continued to generate healthy
returns and accounted for the bulk of the company’s earnings in
2004, more than offsetting the small operating loss recorded by the
company’s auto parts business under its 51%-owned Zhejiang Fulin.
The withdrawal from information technology businesses in March
2004 also helped to reduce expenses. This, coupled with the full
year contribution from the two associates and contribution from new
acquisitions, had enabled the group to record a substantial 47%
growth in net profit in 2004 to HK$84m. The groups’ turnover was
up slightly by 3% to HK$41m as the absence of turnover from IT
businesses in the last 9 months of 2004 was more than offset by the
inclusion of the full year turnover of Zhejiang Fulin, which was

acquired by the group at the end of 2003.

VEHICLE MANUFACTURING - ZHEJIANG GEELY AND
SHANGHAI MAPLE

Zhejiang Geely and Shanghai Maple, both are 46.81%-owned by
the group, recorded total net profit of HK$201m in 2004, up 38%
over 2003, 139% increase in sales volume to 66,057 units and a
124% increase in total revenues to HK$2.3 billion. Revenue per car
declined 6% to HK$35,000 as increased sales of higher-priced Ulion,
Mybo and Maple models only partly offset the inclusion of low price

Haoging models since the second half of 2004.

Geely Automobile Holdings Limited ¢ 15 O
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Net profit per car, however, declined 42% to HK$3,046, mainly due
to the acquisition of 90% stakes in Linhai plant and Lugiao plants
by Zhejiang Geely in mid-2004. Linhai plant was mainly engaged in
the production and sales of Haoging series of economy sedans which
used to command lower margins than the group’s other sedan
models. The construction of Lugiao plant was only completed at the
end of 2004 and therefore it had yet to contribute any profit in 2004.
The temporary closure of Ningbo plant since October 2004 for the
upgrading of its production facilities and the subsequent relocation
of the production of Merrie and Ulion models from Ningbo plant to
Linhai plant had also affected the production and sales volume of
Merrie and Ulion in the second half of 2004. This, together with the
additional expenses incurred by the relocation, had also affected
the net profit margin of the Ningbo plant.

Despite the increased sales of higher-priced models like Mybo and
Maple sedans in 2004, the sales volume of both models have yet to
reach the minimum economy scales and therefore their positive
impact on the profitability of the two associates have yet to become
significant in 2004. During 2004, the two associates managed to
reduce the cost of outsourced automobile parts by around 15%,
largely offsetting the average 10% reduction in the prices of some of
our models and the approximately 30% increase in steel prices during

the year.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

REORGANISATION

During the year, the group continued its on-going restructuring to
transform itself into a company focusing on manufacturing and sales
of automobile and automobile parts. Key events related to
reorganization of the group in 2004 included:

January 2004: Mr. Li Shufu, the founder and Chairman of Geely
Holding became one of the largest shareholders of the group after

indirect acquisition of an effective 19.4% stake in the group;

March 2004: The group’s name was changed from “Guorun Holdings
Limited” to “Geely Automobile Holdings Limited” to reflect the core
business of the group in the manufacturing and sales of Geely and
Maple sedans;

July 2004: The group’s two associates acquired most of the remaining
auto-related assets from Geely Holding, including 90% stakes in Linhai
plant, Lugiao plant, Geely Holding’s Research and Development
(“R&D") operations and the development cost of CK-1 model for a
total consideration of RMB723m. After the acquisitions, all the auto-
related assets of Geely Holding with the exception of the export agency
business had already been included in the two associates set up jointly
by the group and Geely Holding. The group also considers to raised
its shareholdings in the two associates to over 50% subject to

government approval and compliance with relevant regulations.

To facilitate better communications with the investor public and to
ensure an efficient and fair way to distribute information to the
investment community, the group launched a corporate web site:
www.geelyauto.com.hk in July 2004, for distribution of corporate

news and announcements.
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Ao R B
ORGANISATION CHART

Proper Glory 2 R

Holdings Inc. Public

60.7% 39.3%

HERNAREEZRER DA (BBBHIMROGRE: 175)
Geely Automobile Holdings Limited(HK Stock Code: 175)

[100% | 100% | 100%

JN\F]
e%?tﬁiﬁ?d_ Value Century Group Ltd Centurion Industries Ltd

W BUERHERE W BERHEES WhEs - BUERHERERY
Research, manufacturing Research, manufacturing Research, manufacturing and
and sale of sedans and sale of sedans sale of automobile components

46.81% 46.81% 51%
J:: [ o Ny
-1t T AR EARA () EHEETE R
Shanghai Maple Guorun Zhejiang Geely Automobile : ) ﬂE’L} Gl
Automobile Co. Ltd Co. Ltd. (Note) ZIAweJtlang bF'LIJ“T’ G;[JOI;JI’W
F3 - . utomobile Parts
S TERSEHEE sh ( fﬁit) (28K & Ningbo Plant) Components Co. Ltd.
BRAF
Zhejiang Geely Automobile
Research Institute Ltd.
WO =
Research & EAH \71_? HE
development 90% ERAA

Zhejiang Mybo Automobile
EREFBBRARH Sales Co. Ltd.
BRAF
Ningbo Geely Engine
Research Institute Ltd.

Sales & marketing

ISR EHE
BER AT
Zhejiang Geely Automobile

90% Sales Co. Ltd.

EEEEREHERRAR R e
Shanghai Maple Automobile Sales & marketing
Sales Co. Ltd 90%

HIREREHERRAR

90% Zhejiang Haoqing Automobile
Manufacturing Co. Ltd.
(BERERESKE
Lugiao & Linhai Plant)
AEMERNSEHE
2R HE ER2H
Sales & marketing Taizhou Geely Automobile
Wist : BRI % IR A RAR - Sales Co.Hid

Note: Formerly known as Zhejiang Geely Guorun Automobile Company Limited.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

To cope with an increasingly complicated and competitive sedan
market in China and to prepare for the group’s gradual expansion
outside China, the group has embarked on an aggressive drive to
recruit talented professionals to join the management team. During

2004, the group completed three important appointments including:

Mr. Song Lin was appointed an independent non-executive director
and a member of the Audit Committee of the group in September
2004. Mr. Song is currently the president and executive director of
both China Resources (Holdings) Limited and China Resources
National Corporation, chairman and managing director of China
Resources Enterprise Limited (HK Stock Code 291), chairman of
both China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (HK Stock
Code 836) and China Resources Logic Limited (HK Stock Code
1193).

Mr. Shim Bong Sup was appointed vice president and technical
consultant of Geely Holding in April 2004, helping the group to
revamp its R&D functions. Mr. Shim was once the vice president of
Daewoo Motor and the chairman of Korean Automobile Engineering
Association. He has extensive experience in Korean automotive
industry for more than 36 years, especially in new car development,

automotive technology and quality assurance.
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Mr. Lawrence Ang was appointed an executive director of the group
in February 2004, responsible for the international business
development, capital market and investors’ relationship of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ang worked in a number of major
international investment banks for seventeen years with extensive
experience in equity research, investment banking and financial
analysis, focusing on China automobile industry and investment

banking business

AUTOMOBILE PARTS MANUFACTURING - ZHEJIANG
FULIN GUORUN AUTOMOBILE

51%-owned Zhejiang Fulin is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of brake slices and electric power steering
for sedans. Although sales to other group companies like Zhejiang
Geely and Shanghai Maple still accounted for the bulk of the revenues
of Zhejiang Fulin, the management of Zhejiang Fulin has started to
explore new customers in China and overseas markets to reduce its

reliance on companies within the group.

The company suffered a small loss in 2004 due to continuous
pressure on product prices as a result of the deterioration of market
condition in China’s sedan market since the second quarter 2004.

To improve its profitability, the company ventured into high value
added automobile component market in 2004, through the
successful development and launch of a new Electric Power Steering
(“EPS”) system in October 2004. The EPS is a purely electronic
control system, replacing the mechanical connection used in the

convention hydraulic power steering with a number of electronic
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Management Discussion & Analysis

sensors, which generate output signals about the speed of the vehicle
and torque pressure of the steering column to control a motorized
steering system. When compared with conventional hydraulic power
steering, the EPS system has the advantages of easier control, simple
structure, light weight, compact size, lower power and fuel wastage,
high flexibility for installation and easy maintenance. The company’s
EPS system had already been installed in the group’s newest models
like the advanced version of Haoging HQ203A and the soon to be
launched “Free Cruiser” family sedans. As Zhejiang Fulin is currently
the only local producer capable of producing EPS system in China
and given the increasing popularity of EPS system amongst new
models launched by other major international car makers, the board
believes the new EPS system should help to enhance the company’s
profitability in the future.

BN ERBEB) S E 2 Electric Power Steering made by Fulin
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PRODUCTION PLANTS
After the completion of the last acquisition in July 2004, the group’s

two associate companies own four production facilities in Shanghai,
Ningbo, Linhai and Lugiao with total land area of 1,876,681 square
metres and total floor area of 582,681 square metres, comprising
four stamping, welding, painting and assembly production lines, an
independent assembly line for Mybo sport sedans, and the supporting
production lines for engines and gearboxes. The group’s plan is to
expand the combined annual production capacity of the four plants
to at least 300,000 units by the end of 2005 and further to 600,000
units by the end of 2007, mainly through continuous technological
upgrading and expansion at the four existing plants. Details about

the group’s four production plants are summarized below:

HRREEZERER AR — £ERE

Geely Automobile Holdings — Production Plants

BEkE 42.1%
(ﬁ«( ‘ﬁﬁ;}u% $)

Lihhai Plant
(economy cars)

BEME (BRI 42.1%

Lugiao Plant (specialised models)

ERBE 46.8%
(EENRESS)

Ningho Plant
(economy family cars)

LEELER 46.8%
(higkE)

Shanghai Maple plant
(mid-end cars)

B W @ N

= o
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80,000 X1& Haoging (1.0-1.3L)
REE « 7K Delivery van, pickups (1.0L)
- RERBAHEE
— contract manufacturing for Ningbo Plant:
%0 /7 Merrie/Ulion (1.3L-1.5L)
EAHMybo (1.3L-1.50)

29,999 — 39,999
28,800 — 40,800

39,999 — 54,999
79,800 — 138,888

MR203 (1.3L-1.50) (#13%) (new) N@fna
MR303 (1.3L-1.5L) (3 %’x) (new) @R na
%}\?/]Mybom( 3L-1.8L) (30 (new) NER na
60,000 Z1& Haoging SRV303S (¥7%) (new) AiE M na

50,000 E M Free Cruiser (1.3L-1.6L)(3170) (new) 60,000 — 80,000

MR479Q 1.3L &) engines TNEf na
MR479QA 1.5L %&)# engines T na
JL16 1.6L ~ JL18 1.8L 343h# engines (¥) (new) &M na
40,000 /&5 Marindo 303 (1.5L) 65,333
M203 (1.5L) 59,999
LR Maple GaIeW|nd(1.3L) 52,588 — 52,999
M205 (#17) (new) MR na
M305 (1.6L-1.8L) ($73%) (new) N@fna
M506 (Cl-1,2.0L) (¥3%) (new) TEH na
MR479Q 1.3L * MR479QA 1.5L # &)t engines A na

JL16 1.6L + JL18 1.8L % E M engines (¥770) (new) @M na
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Total capital expenditures by the group’s two associates amounted
to approximately RMB600 million in 2004, mainly for the funding of
expansion and upgrading of existing plants, construction of new plant
in Lugiao and the development of new products. Major investment
projects completed in 2004 included:

1. Upgrading of Ningbo plant by adding a new 2,000-tonne
stamping production line, technological upgrading of painting,
welding and assembly lines, engine and gearbox production
lines and the expansion of body and gearbox production lines.
To facilitate the upgrading, production of Merrie and Ulion
models at Ningbo plant was relocated to Linhai plant under a
contract manufacturing arrangement in October 2004.
Ningbo plant has resumed the production of new model —
“Free Cruiser” in April 2005.

2. Expansion of Shanghai Maple plant by adding new pressing,
welding, painting and assembly equipment to the production
lines, expansion of existing factory buildings. The Shanghai
Maple plant had successfully started the mass production of
a new mid-end car “Marindo 303" in October 2004 and plans
to further expand capacity to support the scheduled launches

of other new models in 2005.

3. The construction of Lugiao plant was officially completed at
the end of 2004. The group’s newest production plant is
located in Lugiao of Taizhou, Zhejiang province, comprising
land area of 484,533 square metres, a plant of 46,996 square
meters and a second plant of 68,314 square metres, housing
the production lines for stamping, welding, painting and final
assembly with a designed annual production capacity of
60,000 units. The plant will start official production in 2005,
initially focusing on specialized models of the group such as

Haoging’s new sport recreation vehicle (“SRV”) models.
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A new expansion programme at Linhai plant was started in
mid-2004 and completed at the beginning of 2005 to facilitate
the relocation of the production of Merrie and Ulion models
from Ningbo plant to Linhai plant in 2005, thus allowing the
group to concentrate the production of all its sedan models
under the Haoqing platform in a single plant. Through the
subsequent implementation of platform strategy and parts
standardization, the move should help to reduce the plant’s
production cost further. An independent production line for
the “Mybo” sport cars was completed in 2004.

Construction of a new engine plant in Shanghai under
Shanghai Maple was completed at the end of 2004. The
phase | facilities have an annual production capacity of
50,000 units of petroleum engines and are capable to
produce four different types of engines developed by the
group with engine sizes of 1.3L, 1.5L, 1.6L and 1.8L.

gy
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NEW PRODUCTS

In view of the slow down in car sales volume in China since the

second quarter of 2004, the group had decided to postpone some

new product launches originally scheduled in 2004 to ensure better

utilization of resources. Major new product launches in 2004 are

summarized below:

1.

Maple M203 1.5L hatchback sedan in January 2004;
Haoging HQ203A 1.0L hatchback sedan in April 2004;
Maple Galewind (2nd Generation) 1.3L hatchback sedan in
Geely JL series 1.0L delivery van and pickups in July 2004,
Geely Mybo (black and powerful version) 1.5L sport car in
October 2004;

Haoging HQ203A (advanced version) equipped with new 5-
speed manual gearbox and EPS in October 2004;

Zhejiang Fulin Electric Power Steering (EPS) in October 2004;

Maple Marindo 303 1.5L mid-end sedan in October 2004.

Most of the new products launched in 2004 have been well received

by the market and helped to sustain the group’s market share growth
in 2004 despite a relatively difficult sedan market in China in 2004.

In 2005, the group’s two associates plan to launch at least seven

new models, mainly to support and fully utilize the planned launch

of the group’s new power-train system, comprising a brand new
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automatic transmission gearbox and a new series of 1.6L and 1.8L
engines. Details of the planned new product launched in 2005 are

as follow:

1 “Free Cruiser” (or CK-1) 1.5L sedans;

2 Merrie 203 hatchback sedans;

3. Merrie 303 family sedans;

4. Haoging HQ303S Sport Recreation Vehicles;

5 Mybo 2 1.8L sport cars;

6 Maple M205 sport version of M203 1.5L
hatchback sedans;

7. Maple M305 1.6L-1.8L mid-end sedans;

8. JL16, JL18 (1.6L, 1.8L) petroleum engines;

A new series of automatic gearboxes for 1.3-1.8L engines.

©

The group also plans to start to offer right-hand drive version for
some of its existing models in a bid to facilitate the sales of these

vehicles to more overseas markets.

......
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EXPORTS

In 2004, the company’s two associates exported around 5,000 units
of Geely and Maple sedans, or close to 5% of the associates’ total
sales volume during the period, to 29 overseas countries and regions,
most of which are located in Middle East, Africa and Southern
America. The models exported covered all the key models of the
group from the newly developed pickup to Mybo sport cars. Based
on the initial indicated orders from the overseas dealers at the
beginning of 2005, the group expects total export sales volume to
amount to 8,000 to 10,000 units in 2005.

The group considers exports a very important part of our businesses
and is allocating substantial resources to explore the export markets.
The group also plans to set up specialized trading companies in
Hong Kong to strengthen and coordinate the group’s export

businesses.
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MG REE MARKETING AND PROMOTION

RSN R EL] o RIgEmis % To promote the “Geely” and “Maple” brands and enhance market
F7HE R e MR AT M BER TR RR - & recognition of the group’s automobile, engine design and
EMEEE NG _STMESMN - BhHE manufacturing technologies, the group’s two associates participated
& EE S - and sponsored a number of promotional events during 2004,

including:

EERMmEANSESE
Geely car going on ship for exports

“EENFRENRABENNE  RZTE 2004 National Rally Race: Geely and Maple teams won Number 1,

WE= ANEBAKAEN NE LBuH Number 2, Number 4 and 5 slots in the S2 section of the Shanghai
EHARELRMmMSS2HERNNE—F - F= race of the National Rally in March 2004.

# o FUBERERE -

RIS = I

B
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RBEE = HRITHELME S TNFHR The 54th Miss World 2004 campaign in Sanya of Hainan Island: 30
NEEREREE) - 30803 A SR R E Ath Mybo sport cars, together with other luxury cars from major
BRIERAEL N -_TTPNE+ - AR =g 8 international brands participated in Miss World 2004 parade in Sanya
TR T FE it 7 MAKEEE - in December 2004.

ELRER2 N _TTOFLEAKAE
NAHE - WEISHFKE

Maple racing team in 2004

National Rally Race

e SRt RN EREANBE
Miss World in Hainan with Mybo cars

FER-_ZENF+_AE_TTHF_A A promotional campaign called “Maple Marindo Free Drive” was
HEBT—ER2R 8 EHTINERS held in December 2004 and ended in February 2005. The Maple
) ELESH - BIELTELENETEHNR racing team, comprising of Shanghai Maple’s key models like
WEIHM303 + M203 R E TR R — X« B Marindo M303, M203 and Maple Galewind 2, travelled over 20,000
#3820,0002 2 738 1 B < M 3 E b & 1930 km to over 30 cities in China’s six major regions. The racing team
BT o BEKITS N A G5 A 8 participated in the local sales promotion events organized by
EERNEHIHEHERSE Shanghai Maple’s local dealers.

BE—SHNEATFMELEEERIEHRN To further improve the services to the buyers of Geely and Maple
BR7%  LARRIEE RIS ER B A REEK sedans and to reduce the maintenance costs of Geely sedans, the
A EER-TTNE A= ARE208EE A prices of 208 types of popular parts and components for Geely sedans
BEFTATRENESE - FHRERER were reduced by an average of 20% in December 2004. This was
20% - E—ZEZTHF =R  EEEMHE—F followed by the announcement by Shanghai Maple in March 2005

FE300TEE L BT HHOER - FMEE  that the prices of over 300 parts and components for Maple sedans ;ET'J
B A37% o were reduced by an average of 37%. N
£
g
#®
&
”
|
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SALES AND DISTRIBUTION

By the end of 2004, the group’s two associates had established a
comprehensive distribution and service networks in China as well as
in close to 30 foreign countries, comprising 250 class one dealers
for Geely sedans in China, 103 class one dealers for Maple sedans
in China and over 50 dealers in overseas countries. In addition, there
are close to 500 service and maintenance spots in China for Geely

sedans and another 179 service spots for Maple sedans in China.

The group’s sales and distribution focus in 2005 is to further enhance
and restructure existing dealership to improve their efficiency and
service quality, and to improve sales coverage of Geely and Maple
sedans in second and third tier cities and in the rural market in
China.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Although the group’s two associates had postponed some capital
expenditure projects in 2004, the group’s investment in Research
and Development is still given top priority. A new R&D centers will
be completed in 2005. In addition to four major laboratories (Basic,
Electronic, Street-Test and Multi-function), the new R&D centre will
also include a high speed body design and formation workshop,
which could significantly shorten the time required for new model
development, thus allowing the group to release new models much

faster and in a more cost effective manner.

To reduce the technology gaps between the group’s R&D capabilities
and those of the other international automobile companies, the
group’s two associates invited Mr. Shim Bong Sup, formerly vice
president of Daewoo Motor and the chairman of Korean Automobile
Engineering Association, to join the group’s R&D Institute as vice
president and technical consultant to the group in April 2004.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

OUTLOOK

We believe China’s economy will continue to register healthy growth
in the near future. This should bode well for the continuous
improvement in household incomes and thus the demand for motor
vehicles in China. In particular, demand for fuel-efficient and easy-
to-maintain affordable economy sedans should be amongst the
fastest growing categories in China’s sedan market due to the
increasing popularity of car ownership amongst general households
in China. With less than 1% of the population owning a car at present,

there should be substantial growth potential for car demand in China.

The group and the group’s two associates will continue to focus in
the operation and expansion of its automobile business, to actively
seek for ways and opportunities to expand the group’s revenues and
to further reduce costs, thereby to enhance the returns to the group’s

shareholders.

After two consecutive years of extraordinary growth in 2002 and
2003, when sales volume of sedans grew 56% and 75% respectively
over previous year, we expect the growth of China’s sedan sales
volume to slow further to 10% in 2005 from 16% in 2004. We forecast
total sedan sales volume to reach 2.5 million in 2005. However,
sales of lower end sedans should continue to grow faster than other
types of sedans during the year due to the continued migration of

demand from corporates to individuals.

With the strong foundations established in the past few years and
the timely implementation of new business strategies to control costs
and improve efficiency in 2004, the group is well positioned to gain
more market share in China’s sedan market in 2005. We targeted to
raise our market share from 4.2% to 5% in China in 2005, planning
to produce and sell a total of 120,000 units of vehicles in 2005, up
over 80% from 2004.
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In 2005, we would shift our focus to improve the utilization and the
production efficiency of our existing plants, and to speed up new
product launches. The Group’s two associates plan to launch at
least seven new car models and a brand new power-train system,
comprising new 1.6L and 1.8L engines and a new series of automatic
gearboxes in 2005. The Group’s two associates have budget total
capital expenditure at around RMB700m in 2005, mainly for the
funding of development of new products and technological upgrading

of existing plants.

We expect pressure on further increase in raw material prices, in
particular steel prices, to continue in 2005. Major efforts and
management resources will be allocated to control the production
costs of the two associates and our parts subsidiary Zhejiang Fulin,

aiming at maintain the group’s profitability at last year’s levels.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Capital structure and treasury policies

The business activities of the Group are mainly financed by the share
capital and cash generated from the operating activities. As at 31
December 2004, the Group’s shareholders’ fund amounted to
HK$653 million (2003: HK$569 million). No additional share was

issued during the year.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The Group considers that fluctuations in exchange rate do not impose
a significant risk to the Group since the Group’s operations are
principally in the Mainland China and Hong Kong and all assets and

liabilities are denominated either in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2004, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 1.17 (2003: 1.70) and the gearing ratio of the
Group was 1.6% (2003: 3.7%) which was calculated based on the
Group's total borrowings to total shareholders’ equity. Total borrowings
as at 31 December 2004 amounted to HK$10 million (2003: HK$21
million) were mainly advances due to ultimate holding company and
minority shareholders and they were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Should other opportunities arise requiring
additional funding, the Directors believe that the Group is in a good

position to obtain such financing.

Material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated
companies

On 30 March 2004, the entire 51% interest in Deep Treasure
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries were disposed with a gain
of HK$3.2 million. The Group’s operating division of information
technology was discontinued following the disposal.

Employees’ remuneration policy

As at 31st December 2004, the total number of employees of the
Group, including the associated companies was 6,941 (2003: 2,864).
The significant increase of number of employees was mainly due to
the acquisition of Zhejiang Haoging Automobile Manufacturing
Company Limited during the year by one of the associated companies,
Zhejiang Geely Automobile Company Limited.

Employees’ remuneration packages are reviewed annually by
management by taking into account the experience, overall

performance of the staff as well as the prevailing market conditions.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. He Xuechu, aged 42, is the Chairman of the Company and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and formulation of the
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. He graduated from Anhui
Finance and Trade College, China in 1983 with a Bachelor degree
in Economics. Prior to the establishment of his own business in
1997, he was the Deputy General Manager in the Finance
Department of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Mr.
He has over 20 years of extensive experience in financial

management and investment field.

Mr. Xu Xing Yao, aged 66, joined the Group on 6 March 2003 as the
Executive Director and Vice-chairman of the Company, and is
responsible for the strategic planning of automobile business. Mr.
Xu graduated from Jilin Industrial University in 1963 and worked for
China First Automobiles Group Corporation (“China First
Automobile”), one of the largest automobile corporations in China,
for more than 35 years. He served as the technician, head of research
institute, deputy head of plant operation, vice-president and chief
engineer of China First Automobile. Mr. Xu is the General Manager
of the Chinese Society of Automobile Engineering, an official of a
number of professional bodies and a visiting professor for various
universities. He has over 40 years of experience in automobile
research and development, design, manufacturing, corporate
planning and technology management and is renowned in the

automobile industry in China.

Mr. Ang Siu Lun, Lawrence, aged 44, joined the Group on 23 February
2004 as the Executive Director and is mainly responsible for the
international business development, capital market and investors’
relationship of the Group. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Physics and Computer Science and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked in a number of major
international investment banks for seventeen years with extensive
experience in equity research, investment banking and financial
analysis, focusing on China asset market, automobile industry and

investment banking business.
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Mr. Ku Wai Kwan, aged 43, is the Executive Director of the Company
and is responsible for managing the investment of the Company. He
is also an executive director of a private company engaging in the
business of China international trades, property development and
computer software. Mr. Ku has more than 10 years of experience in
these fields. Mr. Ku graduated from the Beijing University of Physical
Education, China with a Bachelor degree in Education.

Mr. Zhou Teng, aged 41, is the Executive Director of the Company
and is responsible for the financial management of the Company.
Mr. Zhou graduated from Hunan College of Finance and Economics,
China with a Bachelor degree in Economics. During the period from
1985 to 1997, Mr. Zhou had been a key executive of two private
subsidiary companies of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited, which engaged in fur and leather products in both Macau
and Mainland China. In 1997, Mr. Zhou set up his own business,
which is principally engaged in food catering, trading and investment

activities and he has over 20 years of experience in these fields.

Mr. Nan Yang, aged 56, joined the Group on 18 December 2003 as
the Executive Director. He is also the Director and Vice-president of
Geely Holding Group as well as the Director of the joint ventures,
namely Zhejiang Geely Automobile Company Limited and Shanghai
Maple Guorun Automobile Company Limited. He is also the Managing
Director of Shanghai Maple Automobile Limited. Mr. Nan graduated
from Shanghai Railway Institute and received training from German
Kanstanz University. He is a professional expert in automobile
industry, and possesses more than 20 years of manufacturing
experience and 15 years senior management experience respectively
in the automobile industry. He was formerly the General Manager of
Shanghai GKN Drive Shaft Co., Ltd and SAIC Volkswagen.
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Mr. Zhang Zhe, aged 41, joined the Group on 5 September 2003 as
the Executive Director. He is the Director of the joint ventures, namely
Zhejiang Geely Automobile Company Limited and Shanghai Maple
Guorun Automobile Company Limited. Mr. Zhang graduated from
the Postgraduate School of Shanghai Social Science College and is
studying a Master of Business Administration degree in Qinghua
University. He is a professional expert in finance, and has 20 years

of experience in investment and financial management.

Mr. Wong Hing Kwok, aged 60, is the Executive Director of the
Company and is responsible for the administration of the Company.
Mr. Wong graduated from Nanchang Aviation Institute, China. He is
also a director of a private investment company in China and a
general manager of a private real estate development company in
China. Prior to that, he was a director of a private company, which
involved in the development of large-scale residential property project
in Shanghai. Mr. Wong has over 21 years of experience in operating

and managing electronics, property and construction businesses.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis, aged 34, joined the Group as Independent
Non-executive Director on 28 June 2002. He graduated from Texas
A & M University, the USA. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He possesses
over 10 years of experience in accounting and auditing field. Mr.
Lee is the Executive Director of both Vision Grande Group Holdings
Limited (HK Stock Code 2300) and Norstar Founders Group Limited
(HK Stock Code 2339), and is also the Independent Non-executive
director of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (HK Stock
Code 2348).
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Mr. Song Lin, aged 41, joined the Group as Independent Non-
executive Director on 27 September 2004. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Mechanics from the University of Tong Ji in Shanghai,
China. He is currently the President and Executive Director of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation, Chairman and Managing Director of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited (HK Stock Code 291), Chairman of
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (HK Stock Code
836) as well as Chairman of China Resources Logic Limited (HK
Stock Code 1193).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Li Shu Fu, aged 42, is the Chairman of the Board of Geely Holding

Group and is responsible for formulating the medium and long-term
strategies and policies of Geely Group. He is the Chairman of the
joint ventures, namely Zhejiang Geely Automobile Company Limited
and Shanghai Maple Guorun Automobile Company Limited, and is
also the founder and controlling shareholder of Geely Group. Mr. Li
graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology and is a member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He has over
20 years of business development, investment and management
experience in the industries of automobile manufacturing, higher
education and real estate. He was accredited as one of the “50
Most Influential Persons in China’s Automotive Industry in the 50

Years” by a pertinent organization in China.

Mr. Xu Gang, aged 44, is the Director of the joint ventures, namely
Zhejiang Geely Automobile Company Limited and Shanghai Maple
Guorun Automobile Company Limited. He graduated from Taizhou
College and is studying EMBA degree in Guanghua Management
School of Beijing University. Mr. Xu is a professional expert in
business management and has 23 years of experience in the
management and leadership of various government departments.
Mr. Xu was accredited as “The Best CEO/President of Private

Automobile Enterprises in 2003” by a pertinent organization in China.



EENEREEREN

MEBEREE - 605% - BEIA - RZTTEF
MA+HMATMER BB R R

LEERBARLTIRBBSELEN I
BEBERBETIELHEEFRENME 58
BRMAEEREAGFBRBICFHNEE L
B LA REBBEATITE Z BIBERE
BB IRBEER

BIFRAE - 4558 - DARE ZHERER
RAME - BIRERE T E AR EMAM T
BETBEM - RAFALAREAMAENE
BEMAGZERGE - BT ARN
RITLBEEZREEE  RABESS
EREEEFEXBG R - WEGR
TS E IR IEE20F L8R ©

g

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Mr. Shim Bong Sup who is a Korean aged 60, joined the Geely Group
as the Vice President and Technical Consultant on April 10, 2004.
He holds the B.S. Degree in metallurgical engineering and has
extensive experience in Korean automotive industry for more than
36 years especially in new car development, automotive technology
and quality assurance. Mr. Shim was once the vice president of
Daewoo Motor and the chairman of Korean Automobile Engineering
Association.

Mr. Lau Chi Keung, Sammy, aged 45, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Lau holds a Master of Applied
Finance degree from the University of Western Sydney. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau is
also a senior associate member of the Australasian Institute of
Banking and Finance, and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and the Hong Kong Securities Institute. He has over 20

years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Geely Automobile Holdings Limited * 39 O

7
=

g

ol E a8




RIS = I

B

EEEREE

EEgEMRERE_TTEMF+_A=1
—HILFEZ FREEEXZIT RS

ARBRREERAR  MEMBLARZE
BEBERUBREMELS -

ERRAEEME

RER_ZZTNF=A - ABTZBEREH
AE BEBZFHIREE - AARIZHMEA
BEERERARERATMTEERER

A -

ES
AEBEE_TTNF+_A=1+—HIEF
[E2 EBEHNFES3B 2R AW -

EERBN_ZTRFIA-THARIK
RAM2 BRI RABRBSRAE LI - &
{B/51#41,203,0007T °

ME - BEKRERE
FRALEDE  BEMREZEHFEH
R FREJMIEL2 ©

EEN
AR BBRA 2 FHEHN A IRRMEE23 o

o 40 * Annual Report 2004

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the

financial statements.

CHANGE OF THE COMPANY’S NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 1st March, 2004, the name of the Company was
changed from Guorun Holdings Limited BB 122A% B R A & to Geely
Automobile Holdings Limited & F|/3 812 B R A &) .

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2004

are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 53.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1 cent per share to the shareholders on the register of members
on 25th May, 2005, amounting to HK$41,203,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and the Company are set out in note 12 to

the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.
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B RESERVES

FAREBRARAFEEZ BT EHNE Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of Group
578 Zixa A E e = R SRR 24 - and the Company are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 57 and in note 24 to the financial

statements.
£= DIRECTORS
FARBEARAREHIRZARTESHT ¢ The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

WITES - Executive directors:

BEYISLE  £fE Mr. He Xuechu, Chairman

BEE A Mr. Ku Wai Kwan

B A Mr. Zhou Teng

FEBAEE Mr. Wong Hing Kwok

RIS A Mr. Xu Xing Yao

SREASCAE Mr. Zhang Zhe

MG EE Mr. Nan Yang

e bt (RZZZTWF Mr. Ang Siu Lun, Lawrence  (appointed on
—A=-+=H 23rd February, 2004)
L)

B IEHITES ¢ Independent non-executive directors:

TEREE Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis

RIS A (R=ZZZTWFNA Mr. Song Lin (appointed on
Zt+tEBEEE) 27th September, 2004)

QUBAE S A (R=—ZEZRF=AtA Mr. Liu Ming Hui (resigned on
BHT) 7th March, 2005)

BBARNA Z ABERMAEIOKRKIL6 In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of the Company’s Articles of
& BEYLAE - TEELE - FSR%EE Association, Messrs. He Xuechu, Wong Hing Kwok, Lee Cheuk Yin,
RRMELEBRERERTBERGERS Dannis and Song Lin shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual

R A BRI FEEEES - general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

B EMITEE W ME FEEE - WABEAR The independent non-executive directors have no fixed term of office
NRAZBBERAUNERARRRRBAFERS and will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
LR R ERET o annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the

Company'’s Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors, being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31st December, 2004, the interests and short positions of the
directors in the securities of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”), which were required to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, including
interests and short positions which they were deemed or taken to
have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which are required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange are as follows:
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(1) Long position
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company

YN rd
RHEE REBDL
EEE8 514 Number of shares Shareholding
Name of director Capacity in the Company percentage (%)
BEYSEE () NS 2,500,000,000 60.68
Mr. He Xuechu (Note) Corporate 2,500,000,000 60.68
BEE A (W) NS 2,500,000,000 60.68
Mr. Ku Wai Kwan (Note) Corporate 2,500,000,000 60.68
A LA (Hit) NS 2,500,000,000 60.68
Mr. Zhou Teng (Note) Corporate 2,500,000,000 60.68
K#5# : Proper Glory Holdings Inc. ([Proper Glory]) Note: ~ Proper Glory Holdings Inc. (“Proper Glory”) is a private company

RNRBRARESEMALZILART -
VAHBESEE  SFNEEERAF -
Fortune Door Investment Limited }&2Venture
Link Assets Limited 5l B = FEH32%
32% - 28% N8% - BNEEBRAFR
MEBREZESTMRLZILARTE - B
PHMEETRAEFTERTEE RS
Fortune Door Investment Limited /7 548
B STMKL 2 FAART] - A2 AR
BITRABEEEEEERES ° Venture
Link Assets Limited AR B iR 2 B & 7
BRI ZFANRT] - B2 EEBEITRASHE
fEEEERMAA - BEOEERRRAE
FBRANTES - MBFHELERERE
FRIRARRES -

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially owned
as to 32% by Mr. He Xuechu, as to 32% by Geely Group Limited,
as to 28% by Fortune Door Investment Limited and as to 8% by
Venture Link Assets Limited. Geely Group Limited is a private
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Li Shu Fu.
Fortune Door Investment Limited is a private company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned by Mr. Ku Wai Kwan. Venture Link Assets
Limited is a private company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Zhou Teng. Mr. He Xuechu is the chairman of the
Company and a director of the Company, and Messrs. Ku Wai
Kwan and Zhou Teng are directors of the Company.
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(b) BBAKE

EEHA
Name of director

Akt

Mr. Ang Siu Lun, Lawrence

(2) %=
RZZBENF+=—A=+—H8 " #
BAEMESE  TBRHRES 25
ZATHEEARRISEREEEZ
BAn SRABRIRR (D Z A TAR

FERR

BB ES R RNF+ A
=1+—R  mEAREIREES M A EES
SE336IEFE 2 ELMATREE - ARRL
TR EAEMA L (RRREERIT
BUREIR SN AR B Z Bt RARRR
hEAERSORA

RIS = I
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(b) Share options

ERREZ

HEROEE
Underlying REBDL
g4 number of shares Shareholding
Capacity in the Company percentage (%)
EnEAA 35,000,000 0.85
Beneficial Owner 35,000,000 0.85

(2) Short position
None of the directors, chief executives nor their associates had
any interest on the short position in any shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
at 31st December, 2004.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31st December, 2004, the Company
had not been notified of any other person (other than the directors
or the chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or a
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BB ZHFE Long position in shares
RHEHE

=t g4 HiEER REEe2ER REE D (%)

Number of shares

Direct Deemed Shareholding
Name Capacity interest interest percentage (%)
Proper Glory (ffzt) EnAA 2,500,000,000 - 60.68
Proper Glory (Note) Beneficial owner 2,500,000,000 60.68
Deutsche Bank EmEE A 223,370,000 5.42

Aktiengesellschaft

Deutsche Bank Beneficial owner 223,370,000 5.42

Aktiengesellschaft

et -

Proper Glory A7 I iR Z B & 1Az
ZIART] > WHBBYELE - HHE
EBPRAA] - Fortune Door Investment
Limited }&2Venture Link Assets Limited7>
PIEBHEAR32% » 32%  28% 8% ©
FHEEERADASNEBRELHSHT
MRZZFARE - E2HEBITARH
FEBEEERMS © Fortune Door
Investment Limited SRR Z B & 5T
MRZZFAART - HEHEBETRAR
HmEFELREERMAA ° Venture Link
Assets Limited 7278 S8 fL B S 7Tk
SNZAANRT AR HEETIRAAE
BEEERES - BEEVEERANRT
IERARANES - MEFELERAE
BARERIASRRRESE -

Note:

Proper Glory is a private company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and is beneficially owned as to 32% by Mr. He Xuechu, as
to 32% by Geely Group Limited, as to 28% by Fortune Door
Investment Limited and as to 8% by Venture Link Assets Limited.
Geely Group Limited is a private company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Li Shu Fu. Fortune Door Investment Limited is a
private company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Ku Wai
Kwan. Venture Link Assets Limited is a private company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Teng. Mr. He
Xuechu is the chairman of the Company and a director of the
Company, and Messrs. Ku Wai Kwan and Zhou Teng are directors
of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’ share option scheme are set out in note
31 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options during the year.

®
R —EEINE
—Z2ERE +=A
B -A—-H G FR =t-H
768 i RATHE B&i B i RATHE
Exercise  Outstanding Granted  Cancelled Outstanding
= TRAR price at during during at
Director Exercisable period per share 1.1.2004 the year the year 31.12.2004
B
HK$
HOmEE 23.2.2004 - 22.2.2009 0.95 - 35,000,000 - 35,000,000
Ang Siu Lun, Lawrence 23.2.2004 - 22.2.2009 0.95 - 35,000,000 - 35,000,000

ARTBRBREE - FENE-A—+=F
GIECTRES LS EEN PGl
BBH08IT -

EERRFAMXEBERE ZEREETIR
FLEABREMNE - MRFAERZRER
BEAREE B PKIBE TR MEEERERE
HERERMIEE - Bl - NRRRIESRRAE
BREZIFNEESEIA  LAgEerEX
LERTSRRELRE -

RIS = I

B
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The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 23rd
February, 2004, the date of grant of the 2004 options, was HK$0.83.

The directors are of the view that the value of the theoretical value of
the options granted during the year depends on a number of variables
which are either difficult to ascertain or can only be ascertained on
a number of theoretical basis and speculative assumptions.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company believed that any
calculation of the value of the options will not be meaningful and

may be misleading to shareholders in the circumstances.
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B EXFTRERE 2 BAESD - REREME
- ARE - EERARREEMMNERF
BESEFI AL - BEARREEA
FEW B AN R R ST AT E AR A BR8 2 B D =X
ExmmEa o

EECERANER

FAREEEE SV FAES 2 KR AHE
T2 RBHBENRM B RAME32 -

B EXATREES - ART - HERARAR
RAEANBARL KSR AAAEFE
o R A AN AN RS IER
BRIA LR BARK -

BEXS

FR - AEEETETHEALRS MR
EEMRA - ZEXSGTBEERS - %%
R FBHR Y MKRMEI2 -

ARAREEMHBRARRBE —TTNEF
ToAZT-ALFEALEREE HEX
BRARRZ L&

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share options disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Details of transactions between the Group and other companies under
the control of Mr. He Xuechu during the year are set out in note 32
to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into certain related party
transactions which also constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. Details of these transactions are set out in note 32 to

the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31st December, 2004.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and the largest supplier are 40% and 12%, respectively,

of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and the largest customer are 81% and 49%, respectively,
of the Group’s total sales for the year. Zhejiang Haoging Automaobile
Manufacturing Company Limited, a subsidiary of Zhejiang Geely
Automobile Company Limited, an associate of the Company, is the
Company’s largest customer.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the directors,
their associates, or shareholders of the Company, which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital, have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest

customers or suppliers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st
December, 2004 with the Code of Best Practice (the “Code”) as set

out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules which were then inforce.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
accordance with the requirements of the Code for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting processes and internal controls. The audit committee
comprises Messrs. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis and Song Lin, who are

the independent non-executive directors of the Company.

Upon the resignation of Mr. Liu Ming Hui on 7th March, 2005, the
Company has only two independent non-executive directors and audit
committee members. Thus, the Company is temporarily unable to
strictly comply with the relevant rules 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing
Rules requiring the Company to retain at all times a minimum of
three independent non-executive directors and audit committee
members. The Board is in the process of identifying a potential
candidate to fill the vacancy and is expecting the new appointment

to be finalised soon.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules requires at least 25% of the issued

share capital of the Company to be held in public hands. Based on
the information available and within the knowledge of the directors
as at 27th April, 2005 (the latest practicable date prior to the issue

of the annual report), such obligation has been complied with.
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% BRD AUDITORS

BEAFAS LIRS BRIEREE) o fiE A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-

B GRTAITT AR A R EAN 2 REE - appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the
Company.

REEEG On behalf of the Board

BEE29 He Xuechu

FE Chairman

—ETRFMAZT\H 28th April, 2005

RIS = I

B
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Deloitte.
=)

BEANAEZRERLF
B AR
(RESHEEMHA L2 BERAF])

RTE K EZELSIZEL07 EFHRIEEE
BRI E R R R 2 TSR

ESNAEE 2 BRI S

ERARERBRAERAT2HBRE - 1
REZSMBHRERE  EELRERRAE
BzE

AT BEERBREBEATERIEZHER 8
ZEPBRRERBINER  LERZE
PRERAEH 3RS - BR Utk LASN AT AR R Eo A R
& o AT R AR E S 2 ARAER X
HEFMEMATEER -

R EMH

AITIRREB G MR GRM 2 B E
TEZIE FREERBENME I AER
B RTHBELRRBEEERR 2R
& NERHAEERREZ M EHRE
P2 ERMERT RHIEN - FTEERE 2 @5 BUR
2hEA BEAnk BEEZARBERLR

BERRALENREZS IR -

AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GEELY AUTOMOBILE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 53 to 107 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied

consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31st
December, 2004 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for
the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28th April, 2005
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE—_ZTTWF+ = A=+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

—EENEF ZTT=F
2004 2003
B aE BT T PR T IT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
L Turnover 4 41,123 39,872
SHEKA Cost of sales (38,468) (31,900)
EF Gross profit 2,655 7,972
B ER A Other operating income 91 644
DIERHEER Distribution and selling expenses (284) (1,165)
1THER Administrative expenses (15,192) (19,271)
HihiEER Other operating expenses - (757)
EIEEE Loss from operations (12,730) (12,577)
B & A Finance costs (53) (153)
FEMREE R A A Share of results of associates 100,213 68,350
HEMRB AR W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 3,189 =
TR & A Profit before taxation 90,619 55,620
SRR Income tax expense 8 (6,696) (237)
REt D BAIR R A2 AL A Profit before minority interests 83,923 55,383
DY R R Minority interests 471 2,103
RE RN HER Net profit for the year 84,394 57,486
&=} Dividend
FORAREAIR S Proposed final dividend of
FRE®0.01 T HK$0.01 per share 9 41,203 =
R 2 F Earnings per share
—HEK — basic HB#E 2.0l BEE 1610
10 HK 2.0 cents HK 1.6 cents
B 2.010 TEA
—#E — diluted 10 HK 2.0 cents N/A

-
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GeEEEBER Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-ZTZPE&+ = =+—H AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2004

—ggms  —TE=F
2004 2003
MisE BET T TSI
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
IEmBEE Non-current assets
W - BE M Property, plant and equipment 12 5,831 8,589
il N b Interests in associates 14 651,750 558,336
657,581 567,425
MENEE Current assets
ES =y Inventories 15 8,815 7,358
B 5 R H A W FRIA Trade and other receivables 16 11,921 11,114
i Amounts due from minority
shareholders 17 - 1,130
JFE Ui Bl 2 B TR Amount due from an associate 18 338 338
i G NGO Amounts due from related
companies 19 613 -
RITHEBRIIRS Bank balances and cash 1,499 15,823
23,186 35,763
mEEE Current liabilities
ﬁ%&ﬁ@?’gﬁ%lﬁ Trade and other payables 20 12,575 10,535
FES e = E 0] Amounts due to related
companies 19 2,252 -
—R D EARR B Advance from a minority
shareholder 21 5,027 8,010
RITEE Bank borrowings 22 - 2,537
19,854 21,082
mEEEFE Net current assets 3,332 14,681
660,913 582,106
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MZZEZTPF+ = =-+—H AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2004

—gEmE  —TT=4
2004 2003
MIaE BT T TSI
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BAR R HE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 23 82,405 82,405
R Reserves 571,042 486,641
653,447 569,046
2 Minority interests 4,466 2,389
EREBEE Non-current liabilities
ERIRVERR N A EAFR Advance from ultimate
holding company 25 3,000 =
DB R B Advances from minority
shareholders 26 - 9,646
RITEE Bank borrowings 22 - 1,025
3,000 10,671
660,913 582,106

FH3E 107 B2 BHREREN _FZE  The financial statements on pages 53 to 107 were approved and
AEMA-+N\BEEESHERIR  authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th April, 2005 and

BEHEE - W THRERE are signed on its behalf by:
He Xuechu Ang Siu Lun, Lawrence
B2y HD M 2
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR b
E
BEFE -2 =
R
5

-
Geely Automobile Holdings Limited « 55 { }



L o 2namEman

EEEERX  Balance Sheet

R -ZZF+ — § =+—H At 31st December, 2004

—eEmE  —TT=F
2004 2003
B 5 BET T BT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
EmBEE Non-current assets
Yz - RE KRR Property, plant and equipment 12 110 149
[ SpE=RNGTE s e Interests in subsidiaries 13 493,911 497,055
494,021 497,204
mENEE Current assets
H b R YRR Other receivables 183 206
J’EWH’H‘?%Q Tm Amount due from an associate 18 338 338
FEURREE N R FIR Amount due from a related
company 19 186 -
RITEBRIIRE Bank balances and cash 396 6,515
1,103 7,059
DEIE=RI Current liabilities
H b e FOE Other payables 1,172 1,681
DEURR BT Advance from a minority
shareholder 21 - 5,000
1,172 6,681
mEEE (BF) F8 Net current (liabilities) assets (69) 378
493,952 497,582
BRI Capital and reserves
f& s Share capital 23 82,405 82 405
(Gt Reserves 24 408,547 415,177
490,952 497,582
ERBEE Non-current liability
AP R B EAR Advance from ultimate holding
company 25 3,000 -
493,952 497,582
He Xuechu Ang Siu Lun, Lawrence
EEY > Mm
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE E

* Annual Report 2004
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2T F+ = A =+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

s A28 % | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

3t
(&) &7
BRA R AR E ERf#E Accumulated
Share Share  Translation (losses) @t
capital premium reserve profits Total
BEFT BT B%Tr &t BETE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
r&H THE GROUP
RZZEE=%—-H—H At 1st January, 2003 66,305 33,772 (7)  (105,981) (5,411)
ERBENIME 2 Exchange difference on
SBRCELEER translation of operations
FAGAENERERZ  outside Hong Kong and net
Wrgx gain not recognised in the
consolidated income statement - - 1,179 - 1,179
BITRER D Issue of subscription shares 15,600 515,400 = = 531,000
B ETHRY Share issue expenses - (15,208) - - (15,208)
RER RN HE Net profit for the year - - - 57,486 57,486
RZZTT=F At 31st December, 2003 82,405 533,964 1,172 (48,495) 569,046
+=ZRA=1+—H
HEMRBLARRER Realised upon disposal of
subsidiaries - - 7 - 7
AEE R Net profit for the year = = = 84,394 84,394
RZTTMEF At 31st December, 2004 82,405 533,964 1,179 35,899 653,447
+ZA=+—-A

WoTEMFE+-A=+-8
BN O ER IS A RIRE
TE=F BK

161,630,0007% (=
68,113,0007T) °

AEEZ
prillets

At 31st December, 2004, the accumulated profits of the Group included
profits of approximately HK$161,630,000 (2003: HK$68,113,000)
retained by its associates.
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GmelRemEx Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(2 —ZETNF+ = A=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

—EETMEF —EE=F
2004 2003
B3 BET T BT IT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
K OPERATING ACTIVITIES
HRIEE Loss from operations (12,730) (12,577)
TR Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 711 1,233
FLEWA Interest income (6) (37)
HEME - BE Loss on disposal of property,
WL el S plant and equipment 7 42
BECEBRIEE Operating cash flow before
fﬁ%}m@ movements in working capital (12,018) (11,339)
FEEM Increase in inventories (10,063) (142)
B 5 K E Ath E WK IE I AN Increase in trade and other
receivables (13,575) (3,015)
JE U B AR R R IE R Decrease (increase) in amounts
(ijjﬂ) due from minority shareholders 1,130 (1,130)
JE LT R 32 1 B R IEE AN Increase in amounts from
related companies (852) -
B 5 K H A JE - FRIBLE hin Increase in trade and other payables 14,290 878
eI —R B & A R FIEE A Increase in amount due from
an associate - (338)
KEEKRFTACREFHE NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (21,088) (15,086)
RETE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BAYZE - BE K& Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (2,628) (3,977)
HEKNB AR TS HIA Disposal of subsidiaries (net of
(BEfREHERe R cash and cash equivalents
HeEEH) disposed of) 27 (1,839) -
BENRIRE Investments in associates (565) (489,544)
EHFE Interest received 6 37

[$)]
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GmeEamgxR Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE—_ZTTWF+ = A=+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

it JUES —TE=F
2004 2003
(s BT T BT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
RETBFMAREFHE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (5,026) (493,484)
ALE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ERFE Interest paid (53) (153)
BEIRITIEE Repayment of bank borrowings (33) (1,283)
DERT IR Advances from minority shareholders 3,978 3,818
R AR (BF)  Advance from (repayment to)
ultimate holding company 3,000 (3,000)
FTILIRITIEE New bank borrowings raised 2,636 2,500
BENRBR (EBR) Advance from (repayment to)
related companies 2,262 (419)
MBARLERE 2 )FE Capital contributions from
minority shareholders
of subsidiaries - 4,615
BTN PTG R IE)F 58 Net proceeds from issue of shares - 515,792
MERERESFHE NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 11,790 521,870
RekBELEE2 (BL)  (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
20 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (14,324) 13,300
R—A—BZAER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re%E AT 1ST JANUARY 15,823 2,523
R+=—A=+—HZHE&K CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re%E AT 31ST DECEMBER 2
IRITHEBRNIRE Bank balances and cash 1,499 15,823 hd

-
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g R MsE  Notes to the Financial Statements

HE_ZTTWF+ = =+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted limited company. Its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 13.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Proper Glory Holdings Inc. (“Proper Glory”), a

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM THE RECENTLY
ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) issued a number of new or revised Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) (herein collectively referred to as “new
HKFRSs”) which are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1st January, 2005. The Group has not early adopted
these new HKFRSs in the financial statements for the year ended
31st December, 2004.

The Group has commenced considering the potential impact of
these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to determine
whether these new HKFRSs would have a significant impact on
how its results of operations and financial position are prepared
and presented. These new HKFRSs may result in changes in
the future as to how the results and financial position are

prepared and presented.
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3. FESITBER 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention and in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting

policies adopted are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31st December each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the

year are included in the consolidated income statement from

MIMFE) 5FALR & Wk the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.
a8 Negative goodwill

BREEAEEMAEARE QAR NKE
EHZABREERBBERFEBEK
B2 ZHE -

R M= ARMELE 2 AEmEB A X
LRRZREEFELINA - HEEER
BERMRKBRREL 2 BERFAX
AlgNEEZEBRIFAHHERERER
A o HER BB TIRE WE R E R Z 7T
FEEENBFHTEAFRAERE

RBREA - HEEEBAD KB &
RIS EEE 2 N TFEERE - QIR
HERAUIA e

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of an

associate at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is
deducted from the carrying value of that associate. To the extent
that such negative goodwill is attributable to losses or expenses
anticipated at the date of acquisition, it is released to income in
the period in which those losses or expenses arise. The
remaining negative goodwill is recognised as income on a straight
line basis over the remaining average useful life of the identifiable
acquired depreciable assets. To the extent that such negative
goodwill exceeds the aggregate fair value of the acquired

identifiable non-monetary assets, it is recognised in income

immediately.
1
MEARZRE Investments in subsidiaries ;
M8 A Al 2 & Ty IR B AR 2 R RR Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s e
B
BEEBBFARRARZEERER ° balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss. po

Ty,
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3. XFESIBEK & 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results of its associates for the year. In
the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated
at the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates.

Revenue recognition

Income from sales of automobile parts and components is
recognised when the products are delivered and title has been
passed.

Income from sales of software and hardware is recognised when
the merchandise is delivered.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time basis
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest
rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation
and amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual values, using the straight
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 2% to 5%
1010 33.3%
20% t0 33.3%

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures,
office equipment
and motor vehicles 20% to 33.3%
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income
statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
rates ruling on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in such currencies are re-translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the rates ruling on the balance sheet
date. Gains and losses arising on exchange are dealt with in the

income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated at the
exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rate for the
year. Exchange differences arising are dealt with in the reserves.
Such translation differences are recognised as income or as

expenses in the year which the operation is disposed of.

Geely Automobile Holdings Limited * 63 t }
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g R MsE  Notes to the Financial Statements

HE_ZTTWF+ = =+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwiill
(or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction

that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow

all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3. FESIBEK (B) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited

directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt

RFE A ERIR) BROD © with in equity.
BB R KA Retirement benefit costs

REBERTIEAESFE ([RES] &
2)) KB R EERAEHFE < Huamn
BB FIERI S o

e
REEH 2 BN SIR A BELF A
B AL BRI -

=E 3
s g e T TR A AR RHEAR
BTSRRI - A
W -

Payments to the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF” Scheme) and the state-managed retirement benefit

scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the

relevant lease.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the sale revenue arising
from sales of automobile parts and components and from
information and technology related business and is analysed as

follows:

—gEmF  —TT=4

2004 2003

BT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT EH 2 HE Sales of automobile parts and components 31,903 372
BB AER RS Sales revenue from information and technology "
FSSHE e related businesses 9,220 39,500 2_]
-
41,123 39,872 ﬁ

-
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5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

# o w3 W A
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Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised into two
operating divisions — (i) manufacturing and trading of automobile
and related automobile components, (ii) information technology.
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its

primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Automobile — manufacturing and trading of
automobile parts and related

automobile components

Information technology — information technology and

related business

Following the disposal of the entire 51 % interest in Deep Treasure
Investments Limited (“Deep Treasure”) and its subsidiaries, the
operations of information technology was discontinued on 30th
March, 2004, details of which are set out in note 32(a).
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5. ¥BREDE (&) 5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Continued)
X¥oE (& Business segments (Continued)
EARBELERERIEEBZDBEER Segment information about the continuing and discontinuing
Z5T businesses is presented below.
BE—FTWFE+—_A=1—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

BHEREXEK BRI
Continuing  Discontinuing

operations operations
EARR
RE Information SE
Automobile technology Consolidated
FEMETIT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Y= REVENUE
HIMHE External sales 31,903 9,220 41,123
E 3 RESULT
Sak CE Segment result (256) (787) (1,043)
REEDBL 2 BEFRZ Unallocated corporate
expenses (11,687)
ZEEBE Loss from operations (12,730)
BMisER Finance costs - (53) (53)
RGBS N R %A Share of results of associates 100,167 46 100,213
HENB AR Z WS Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries - 3,189 3,189
A5t B g Profit before taxation 90,619
FTSHiF 2 Income tax expense (6,696) - (6,696)
Rt DEILHEEZSANEF]  Profit before minority interests 83,923 ;ET'J
VYRR S Minority interests 121 350 471 ;”
g
REEmFFRE Net profit for the year 84,394 E

FR
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5. (¥BRMEDE (B)

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Continued)

E2SNE Business segments (Continued)
EESEX BALANCE SHEET
BEREXL BRI
Continuing  Discontinuing
operations operations
EA B
RE Information wma
Automobile technology Consolidated
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
DIEE Segment assets 680,767 = 630,767
=Ry LIABILITIES
DHEE Segment liabilities (18,674) - (18,674)
RegenlczBE Unallocated liabilities (4,180)
(22,854)
Ht & w OTHER INFORMATION
RHEREXER BRI
Continuing  Discontinuing
operations operations
EBE
RE Information 5]
Automobile technology Consolidated
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A0 Capital additions 2,568 60 2,628
e Depreciation 528 183 711
LEME  BE Loss on disposal of property,
Nkt 2 1R plant and equipment 7 = 7
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5. ¥BREDE (&) 5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Continued)
X¥oE (B Business segments (Continued)
BE—TTE=—F+_H=+—HIFFF For the year ended 31st December, 2003

BHEREXEL ERIEER
Continuing  Discontinuing

operations operations
BB
RE Information Foesy
Automobile technology Consolidated
BETIT BT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Y = TURNOVER
HINEE External sales 372 39,500 39,872
E RESULT
DEREE Segment result (69) (2,012) (2,081)
REEDELZ%¥MY  Unallocated corporate
expenses (10,496)
LB EE Loss from operations (12,577)
B8 A Finance costs (4) (149) (153)
il /N Share of results of associates 68,358 (8) 68,350
AT A Profit before taxation 55,620
FriS R 2 Income tax expense (237)
RET D EIR R R A
gl Profit before minority interests 55,383
DB R Minority interests 2,103 5
B %
REE G FFEE Net profit for the year 57,486 ﬁ
&

-
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5. (¥BRMEDE (B)

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Continued)

EEEEX BALANCE SHEET
BEESEEK B IEER
Continuing  Discontinuing
operations operations
EARE
RE Information Foe)
Automobile technology Consolidated
BT T BT TT BT TT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
DIEE Segment assets 579,108 24,080 603,188
afE LIABILITIES
SEBE Segment liabilities (7,770) (20,421) (28,191)
ReepBLz BfE Unallocated liabilities (3,562)
(31,753)
Hth &R OTHER INFORMATION
BEEEEK BRI
Continuing  Discontinuing
operations operations
ERR
RE Information wE
Automobile technology Consolidated
BT TT BT TT BT TT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BN Capital additions 3,758 219 3,977
e Depreciation 101 1,132 1,233
LEME  BE Loss on disposal of property,
P& = plant and equipment 2 40 42
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5. ¥EhEDE (&)
WESE

REBE 2 EBHULRHE AR LM
(MFED (BFEEE) - UL T2

BmHOAT -

6. ZEFIE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’s activities and operations are based in the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC”), including Hong Kong.

Accordingly, a geographical analysis is not presented.

6. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

it JUES —TE=F
2004 2003
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZiEEED Loss from operations has
mE (GHA) been arrived at after
charging (crediting):
BEKA (BIEEFEME) Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 8,454 8,343
RIRBAFT SR Retirement benefits scheme contributions 527 206
BB A MR%E Total staff costs 8,981 8,549
M E Auditors’ remuneration 332 483
wE Depreciation 711 1,233
HEME  BEK Loss on disposal of property, plant
BB EE and equipment 7 42
SRITIE T BUA Interest income from bank deposits (6) (37)

Ty
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7. BHBER 7. FINANCE COSTS
—eEmE - EE=F
2004 2003
BEET T BT TT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE - Interest on
AR TSI EHEE2E{EE  Bank borrowings
ZIRITIEE wholly repayable
—hHFERN — within five years 53 73
—RF%E — after five years - 76
HAth Others - 4
53 153
PR INCOME TAX EXPENSE
—EENF i
2004 2003
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt AR EIETHIR Share of taxation attributable to associates 6,696 237

HAAEEE TERARFANEE L E
ETERTUE N - Bt EAEHE BT
SR -

RIEH B BEGI ARG - NEEZH
B ) R B A R A R & (R A
FREFMERRANTEAER - XL
FIRBETR = F R R50% F BIFT1S A

HE_TTM&E+_A=1t—HBItFE
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Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the year as the
companies within the Group had no estimated assessable profits

in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s PRC subsidiary and associates are entitled to an
exemption from PRC income tax for the two years starting from
their first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction for

the next three years.

The charge for the year ended 31st December, 2004 represent
enterprise income tax provided by the associates and the
subsidiaries of the associates with operations in the PRC at the

applicable rates on their assessable profits.
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8. FTSHiFAxX (&) 8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
NS SR TE 37 M B U A AR 2 N ST AR A The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
T taxation per the income statement as follows:
—EENF —ET=F
2004 2003
BT T BT TT
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR A Profit before taxation 90,619 55,620
Bl AP T 2 33% Tax at the domestic
FTEZTIE income tax rate of 33% 29,904 18,355
AT E R RN S Tax effect of expenses not deductible in
TR ERZFRIEZE  determining taxable profit 4,136 473
RERRIEB 2 B2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 82 6,109
(RSN R B 2 TRIEFE  Tax effect of share of results of associates (26,374) (11,041)
METHERF NS Tax effect of income not taxable in
BARBWMAZRBEZE  determining taxable profit (1,052) (13)
H A RERE R 2 R Effect of different tax rates
=RIE in other jurisdictions - (2,267)
RYRBENEB AR ZHTE  Effect of tax exemption granted to
N E PRC subsidiaries - (11,379)
AFEFHIBES M Tax expense for the year 6,696 237
RER S AEE B I B EARBEE There is no significant unprovided deferred taxation during the
FERRIA o year or at the balance sheet date.
9. RE 9. DIVIDEND
—gEnE —gE=4
2004 2003
BET T PR T IT =
HK$'000 HK$'000 7
£
}g
BORREANR B TR B 0.01 7T Final, proposed — ﬁ
(ZET=F: #|) HK$0.01 per share (2003: Nil) 41,203 - "
al
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9.

10.

M+ — A =+—H L4 E For the year ended 31st December, 2004

DIVIDEND (Continued)

Final dividend of HK$0.01 per share has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
net profit for the year of approximately HK$84,394,000 (2003:
HK$57,486,000) and on 4,120,264,902 (2003: weighted
average number of 3,614,785,000) shares in issue during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st December,
2004 does not assume the exercise of share options as the
exercise price of the share options were higher than the average

market price.

No diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st December,
2003 had been presented as there was no potential ordinary
share in existence during that year.
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M. ESRESMEALTZENE 11. DIRECTORS’ AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS
EEMe Directors’ emoluments
—gemE  —TT=%
2004 2003
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
e Fees
HWITES Executive directors 260 229
B IEHITES Independent non-executive directors 243 240
503 469
E b i < Other emoluments
HWITES Executive directors
—FEeRAMME — Salaries and other emoluments 3,514 2,590
—RIREFIFTEI R — Retirement benefits scheme contributions 59 48
3,573 2,638
4,076 3,107

T,
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(2 —ZETNF+ = A=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

. EERESMEALTZEHE B&) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

=M (@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
ESEMEHEQNT - Emoluments of the directors are within the following bands:
BEEAY
Number of directors
—EENMF —EE=F
2004 2003
WITES Executive directors
Z 2= 8% 1,000,000 Nil to HK$1,000,000 7 8
751 1,000,001 7T HK$1,000,001 to
Z£78% 1,500,000 7T HK$1,500,000 1 -
8 8
BUIERTTES Independent non-executive directors
T &% 1,000,000 7 Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 2
N E—TTWE+—_A=+—H k= No director waived any emoluments during the year ended 31st
TT=F+_A=1+—HIFERN & December, 2004 and 31st December, 2003.
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HE—_ZTTWF+ = A=+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

1. BEERBREMEALZME &) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS'’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

EESRBE_TTHUFR-_FF=F The emoluments of every director for the years ended 31st
tTZA=T-HLEFEZHMEHIIW December, 2004 and 2003 are set out below:
T
“EENE
2004
e
Befm
Employer's —EE=F
contribution 2003
EEps ne #&  toprovident bl a5
Name of director Fee Salary fund Total Total
B ok B B B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
A Ang Siu Lun, Lawrence - 1,110,000 11,000 1,121,000 -
BE4] He Xuechu - 780,000 12,000 792,000 852,000
BEE Ku Wai Kwan - 650,000 12,000 662,000 712,000
[k Zhou Teng - 650,000 12,000 662,000 712,000
THE Wong Hing Kwok - 325,000 12,000 337,000 362,000
frEz= Xu Xing Yao 240,000 - - 240,000 197,000
KR Zhang Zhe 10,000 - - 10,000 3,000
() Nan Yang 10,000 - - 10,000 1,000
FaR Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis 120,000 = = 120,000 120,000
2I5E Liu Ming Hui 120,000 - - 120,000 120,000
KA Song Lin 2,000 - - 2,000 -
sk Dong Xing Quan = = = = 28,000

(BEMZZEZ=%F (resigned on 30th
ANA=THET)  June 2003)
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(2 —ZETNF+ = A=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

1. EERESHNE AL ZEE (&) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’

# o w3 W A

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

BEEMEALHME Highest paid individuals’ emoluments
BN TRE&SMEAL (BEESRA Details of the emoluments payable to the five highest paid
iR E) 2 MeFHmT individuals (including directors and other employees) are as

follows:

“EEONF —ET=F
2004 2003
BT R BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEARFH & FOERL Basic salaries and allowances 3,580 2,787
RIRBAET SR Retirement benefits scheme contributions 59 48
3,639 2,835

TasEMEALERNE (CEE=
F - UR)RNABRTES - HMSH
N LEX - MABRMEEES D 20
HAEREMEALIFTOT

T

The emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals
included four (2003: four) executive directors of the Company,
details of whose emoluments have been included above. An
analysis of five highest paid individuals by number of individuals

and emolument range is as follows:

AE
Number of individuals

—EENE T4

2004 2003

ZTZ 1,000,000 Nil = HK$1,000,000 4 5
7B % 1,000,001 & HK$1,000,001 to

7B 1,500,000 T HK$1,500,000 1 =

5 5

RBEE-TZTNF+_A=1+—HItF
ER - AEsmiE A+ EIREER
B tE RN AANE B 7 528 s BB B 8
(ZZTT=F: ) o
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No emolument of the five highest paid individuals was incurred
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31st
December, 2004 (2003: Nil).
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2T F+ = A =+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

12. 1% - BERZRE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HAR
HE BWAE
RERAE
B E 4  Furniture and
RS MEERE fixtures, office
g3 Plant and Leasehold equipment and 8%
Buildings machinery  improvements motor vehicles Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KrEE THE GROUP
B COST
R-ZTME—FA—H At Ist January, 2004 2,698 3,596 597 4,820 11,711
b Additions - 2,089 - 539 2,628
& Disposals - - - (8) (8)
HENBAR Disposal of subsidiaries (2,698) - (521) (4,631) (7,850)
R_EENF At 31st December, 2004
+=A=+-H - 5,685 76 720 6,481
nE DEPRECIATION
RZZZWE—F—H At Ist January, 2004 279 34 61 2,748 3,122
FRREE Charge for the year 14 410 27 260 711
HE R Eliminated on disposals — — - (1) (1)
HENBLAR Eliminated on disposal of
S A subsidiaries (293) - (32) (2,857) (3,182)
RZZZTNF At 31st December, 2004
+=A=+-H - 444 56 150 650
REFE NET BOOK VALUES
R-TZME At 31st December, 2004
+-A=1+—H - 5,241 20 570 5,831
R-TE=F At 31st December, 2003
+-A=1+—H 2,419 3,562 536 2,072 8,589

-
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g R MsE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Z2-TTPNF+— f=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

HRE - £BER
MAERE
ik Furniture,
MEEE fixtures and
Leasehold office a5t
improvements equipment Total
BETT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAT] THE COMPANY
A COST
R-ZEZTNF—A—H At 1st January, 2004 76 159 235
i Additions - 56 56
R_ZEENF+-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2004 76 215 291
e DEPRECIATION
R-ZEZTNF—A—H At 1st January, 2004 29 57 86
FREE Charge for the year 27 68 95
R-ZEENF+-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2004 56 125 181
IREFE NET BOOK VALUES
NZZENFE+-F=+—H At 31st December, 2004 20 90 110
NZZBZE=F+_-A=1+—H  At31st December, 2003 47 102 149

EREFERRE SR F LA
+ AR RB AR BRI R
ZHEFE - GERFREHEHBAT

& e
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year.

The buildings were mortgaged as collateral for the Group’s
banking facilities for the year ended 31st December, 2003 and
were disposed of due to the disposal of subsidiaries during the
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2T F+ = A =+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

13. B A Bl 13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AAF
THE COMPANY

—EENE —TT 4
2004 2003
BT T BT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETIRG 2 AE Unlisted shares, at cost 1 1
BERTHIB AT Advances to subsidiaries 493,910 497,054
493,911 497,055
ERTHBRARZHRBAEEERTRR Advances to subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-free. In
B BEERR/ZFABAELEE R B the opinion of the directors, the amounts will not be repayable
ToEARERE  WHEBEEEERSER within the next twelve months from the balance sheet date and

HIVESERENIBR © are therefore shown in the balance sheet as non-current.
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HE_ZTTWF+ = =+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

13. BN A (&
MEARR-_TZENF+-A=+—8

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31st December, 2004 are set

# o w3 W A

3

LB out below:
AR, BRTR
K BRRA/
EXME HMER P R
Place of Issued and fully Bk
incorporation/ paid share/ Percentage
AR registration registered of equity FEER
Name of company and operations capital interest held Principal activities
B CE:
Directly Indirectly
Centurion Industries Limited RERUHE 1%1T  100% - REERR
British Virgin US$1  100% - Investment holding
Islands
Value Century Group Limited RERTHE 1%nr  100% - REAERR
British Virgin US$1  100% - Investment holding
Islands
EHERESBRAF i B¥27T  100% - EEgX
Geely International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Inactive
AT A EE R E TR HE 1,209,200 % 7T - 51% MR- 4E - E#H
BRRA] RHERETH
RAEE
Zhejiang Fulin Guorun Automobile PRC USD1,209,200 - 51%  Research, production,

Components Co., Ltd.*

AAARGEZHBAAAOERZRIE

MEERE  R_F==FZ-

HENE R RRNFAXNFER B ET

EfETSES °
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marketing and sales of
automobile parts and
related components

The Company’s subsidiary in the PRC is sino-foreign equity joint venture

established for a period of 30 years expiring in 2033.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during

the year or at the end of the year.
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2T F+ = A =+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

14. P& N TR 14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AT
THE COMPANY
—ZTIE —ET=F
2004 2003
BT ok e
HK$’'000 HK$'000
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 651,750 559,213
B BEE Less: Negative goodwill - (377)
651,750 558,836
BREDRFALENEB A RERE - The negative goodwill was released upon disposal of the

subsidiaries during the year.

T,
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14. BRE N R = ()

R-ZTZNFE+-HA=+—H  K~EH

B DA TR 2 RS ¢

g R MsE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Z2-TTPNF+— f=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

As at 31st December, 2004, the Group had interests in the

following associates:

1311954 EEEEGER
e BXZEAH
Place of Percentage of
registration BRRE registered capital
ARERE and Paid-up attributable tothe — T EEH
Name of company operations capital Group  Principal activities
HLENAERRAF i 82,803,000 %7t 46.8%  EHEME  FHE-
(RIS MEE R E HE - BHERHERSE
BRRE) (THHIEM]) * RAB 2 RE T
Zhejiang Geely Automobile PRC USD82,803,000 46.8% Research, development,
Company Limited production, marketing
(Formerly known as and sales of sedans and
Zhejiang Geely Guorun related automobile
Automobile Company components in the PRC
Limited) (“Zhejiang Geely”)*
LTEEEREAEAR LA i 51,697,000 %7t 46.8%  EMEME  FHE-
(TEBEFEE]) * HE - BHRHE
BERABAETHHY
Shanghai Maple Guorun PRC USD51,697,000 46.8% Research, development,
Automobile Co. Ltd. production, marketing
(“Shanghai Maple”) * and sales of sedans and
related automobile
components in the PRC
HIEANAEHERRLDA mE  AK%10,000,0007 421%  ERBEZHEKHERS
Zhejiang Mybo Automobile PRC RMB10,000,000 42.1% Marketing and sales of
Sales Co. Ltd. sedans in the PRC
AN AEHEARARA mE  AK%15,000,0007T 421%  ERBEZHEKHERS
Zhejiang Geely Automobile PRC RMB15,000,000 42.1% Marketing and sales of sedans

Sales Co. Ltd.
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in the PRC
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2T F+ = A =+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

14. & N T fEm () 14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Ei311954 EEEEGER
EXE ExzELH
Place of Percentage of
registration BERAK  registered capital
AFEHE and Paid-up attributable tothe — T EEH
Name of company operations capital Group  Principal activities
HIRBAERERR LA fE AR 530,000,000 7T 421% ERREERHESRS
Zhejiang Haoging PRC RMB530,000,000 42.1%  Production and sales of
Automobile Manufacturing sedans in the PRC
Company Limited
AMENTEHERRAA mE AR 2,000,000 7T 379% HEREZHEKHERS
Taizhou Geely Automobile PRC RMB2,000,000 37.9% Marketing and sales of
Sales Co. Ltd. sedans in the PRC
ALE N ER %k i AR %30,000,0007 421%  ERRWAENAEEEREH
BRAT LR
Zhejiang Geely Automobile PRC RMB30,000,000 42.1%  Research and development
Research Institute Limited of sedans and related

automobile components

in the PRC
EREMNEBEH R th AR®10,000,0007C 1% EVEHERAZETEEEHK
BRAR
Ningbo Geely Engine PRC RMB10,000,000 42.1% Research and development
Research Institute Limited of automobile engines in
the PRC
GEEABHERRA mE  AR%6,000,0007T 21% EVBELERHERE
Shangha| Maple Automobile PRC RMB6,000,000 42.1%  Marketing and sales of
Sales Co. Ltd. sedans in the PRC &
#
*
AR EIRF R EE R E A30FH 2 *  These associates are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established ﬁ
SNRINE &R o in the PRC for a period of 30 years. 7
R
a
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HE_ZTTWF+ = =+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

14. BRE N R = ()

THIER T8 E NS B E R E N F
PAN

BEELARBEHRABEZ EEREA

14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following details have been compiled from the audited

consolidated management accounts of the Group’s significant

BIEERE © associates prepared in accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong.
FRESE Results for the year
bigEx L& F
Shanghai Zhejiang
Maple Geely
—EENF 2T —EENFE —TT=F
2004 2003 2004 2003
BT BT BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EEHE Turnover 503,390 34972 1,807,626 997,032
Rt 185 A Profit after taxation 16,122 1,370 183,602 143,987
REERESG Profit after taxation
Edinrl attributable to the Group 7,545 641 85,925 67,386
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HE—_ZTTWF+ = A=+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

14. BrE N RIS (B) 14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
B AR Financial position
EigEx AL E F
Shanghai Zhejiang
Maple Geely
—EENFE —ZE=F ZZIENF —TT=F
2004 2003 2004 2003

BT BET T BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

EREEE Non-current assets 458,683 305,408 1,650,846 750,204
MENEE Current assets 345,675 215958 2,163,546 784,082
ViEIN=RE Current liabilities (349,035) (25,236) (2,289,739) (327,935)
EmEBE Non-current liabilities (34,278) (92,121)  (553,070) (417,457)
BEFE Net assets 421,045 404,009 971,583 788,894
AREE L Net assets attributable
BESE to the Group 197,049 189,076 454,701 369,202
15. B 15. INVENTORIES
REH
THE GROUP
—EZTNE —ET=F
2004 2003
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEAME At cost:
R Raw materials 3,466 2,770
RS Work in progress 468 4,588 -
SUAK Finished goods 4,881 - 2”
=
}g
8,815 7,358 &

-
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(2 —ZETNF+ = A=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

16. E5 K H A EURIR

REEZBER AR TESEFP30E90RH

ZIEEH -

EHREMEKZIBRIEE SRR
#75811,420,0007T (ZEZ

5,612,0007T) °

REER 2 HE 5 RIGRIR MK 2 a0

=F : B

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

to 90 days to its trade customers.

The Group has a policy of allowing a credit period from 30 days

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of
approximately HK$11,420,000 (2003: HK$5,612,000).

The following is an aged analysis of the trade receivables at the

i balance sheet date:
THE GROUP
g3 DUE:S ZTT=F
2004 2003
BT T BEET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
0=60H 0 - 60 days 7,874 4,480
61 290 H 61 — 90 days 2,948 170
i@ 90 H Over 90 days 598 962
11,420 5,612
B REWRIB 2 HAKIER AT ¢ The trade receivables comprise:
—FETNF —
2004 2003
BYETT EEET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEWER L RE 2B S Trade receivables
FEWSRIE from associates 11,219 =
FEUER & N AR E Trade receivables
NEZBEFEIW from group
IR companies of an associate 201 =
INAR P Outside customers - 5,612
11,420 5,612
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HE—_ZTTWF+ = A=+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

17.

18.

19.

FEW D B R FRIE

FEW AR B D B R GRIB BRI K
B YERFRBHEE -

FEUR B N R FRIR

FE UL AN £2 [ 8] Ko AN B 21X B RIB AR
ERERLE  BAREXRKEE -

FEW,FESBREE 1N RIFRIE

AEBRARR Z Y, FERRIZELRR]
RBESEER - 28 - BANEREE

o

R

& B U B i A R SR 1R R R A AR
RARI—MREZEERRLNABE
427,0007C (ZEZT = : &) REWHERL
PERR A B — (I ARER 4975 6 186,0007T (=
TE=F |)ZF0E -

REEERBFER R FIEREMNEES A
Al ZEE QT KBEA52,000T (ZEE
=F /) RENHBRARDEIRR 2%
B AR #4E1,800,000T (ZEE=
Fm)ZHAE -

A BE W BB A R FORTE e Wik 4R
PR AR —RIIRER Z FRIE

17.

18.

19.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due from minority shareholders of the Group were

unsecured, interest-free and were fully settled during the year.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The amount due from an associate of the Group and the

Company is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due from/to related companies of the Group and
the Company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

The amounts due from related companies of the Group represent
an amount of approximately HK$427,000 (2003: Nil) due from
a group company of a shareholder of the ultimate holding
company and an amount of approximately HK$186,000 (2003:

Nil) due from a shareholder of the ultimate holding company.

The amounts due to related companies of the Group represent
an amount of approximately HK$452,000 (2003: Nil) due to a
group company of an associate and an amount of approximately
HK$1,800,000 (2003: Nil) due to a group company of the

minority shareholder of a subsidiary.

The amount due from a related company of the Company
represents an amount due from a shareholder of the ultimate

holding company.
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(2 —ZETNF+ = A=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

20. B 5 K H MR FIE

B REMENZIBRIEE S EMNFIE
#)75H511,143,00070 (ZZE=4F : B
5,273,0007T) ©

REER 28 S5 RNRRKE DTN

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
approximately HK$11,143,000 (2003: HK$5,273,000).

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance

N sheet date:
THE GROUP
—EENF —ZFT=
2004 2003
BT T TSI
HK$’000 HK$'000
0Z 60 H 0 - 60 days 7,763 3,826
61 290 H 61 — 90 days 832 254
#3890 H Over 90 days 2,548 1,193
11,143 5,273

21. LHIRREAIR

REE D BIR 2 BB ERA -
RB - BZARBEREER -

RZZEZ=F+-_A=+—H ~&EH
REARG —LPHRER 2 BFAEE
5,000,000 A3 - 8 - WERF
NIERHEEMB AR 2 o REREE
8 o
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21. ADVANCE FROM A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

The advance from a minority shareholder of the Group is

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

At 31st December, 2003, an advance from a minority
shareholder of the Group and the Company of HK$5,000,000
was unsecured, interest-free and was fully settled as part of the

consideration on disposal of the subsidiaries during the year.
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2T F+ = A =+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

22 RITEE 22. BANK BORROWINGS
AEH
THE GROUP
—ETME T =F
2004 2003
BETT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
REISR7ITER - A Long-term bank loans, secured - 1,025
MHASRITEFR - A Short-term bank loans, secured - 183
WHISRITEFN - LI Short-term bank loans, unsecured - 2,354
- 3,562
FHEEZEHHLT : The maturity of the above borrowings is as follows:
B —F Not exceeding one year - 2,537
—FLA BT More than one year, but not
TBA M E exceeding two years - 182
MEA LB More than two years, but not
FEBAF exceeding five years - 548
AFMNE Over five years - 295
- 3,562
B SEREBBEZ Less: Amount due within one year shown under
—FAE|EAFIA current liabilities - (2,537)
- 1,025

Ty
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HE_ZTTWF+ = =+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

23. 7 23. SHARE CAPITAL
RHHE [E D
Number Nominal
of shares value
BETT
HK$'000
ETERRR - Authorised:
FREESE 0.02 T2 TR Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
-RZEE=F-f—-HK ~ Balance at 1st January, 2003 and
—ZE=F+-A=1+-H 31st December, 2003
LEER 5,000,000,000 100,000
—EIEERA (7 (i) — Increase in authorised share
capital (note (iii)) 3,000,000,000 60,000
-RIETME+-_A=+—H ~ Balance at 31st December, 2004
R 8,000,000,000 160,000
ERTRAERA : Issued and fully paid:
FREEBE0.02 T2 EBR Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
-RZET=F—-A—Hz&H — Balance at 1st January, 2003 3,340,264,902 66,805
—RhRE (Z0) — Share subscription (note (i) 100,000,000 2,000
B8 (a3i) — Share subscription (note (ii)) 680,000,000 13,600
-RZEZ=F+-A=+—H — Balance at 31st December, 2003
k=—FENF+-A=+—H and 31st December, 2004
LR 4,120,264,902 82,405
e Notes:
(i) RMZZTZ=F=H+/\H ' Proper Glory (i) On 18th March, 2003, Proper Glory entered into an agreement to
RN —IH R - IRERARHD S H0.557T place out 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company to
Z (BR8N 58 = 75 B & 100,000,000/% independent third parties at HK$0.55 per share. On the same
AAEEREA - WER - Proper Gloryf date, Proper Glory entered into a subscription agreement with the
ARARGIM—EHRERZ - RERRNK Company to subscribe for 100,000,000 new ordinary shares of
75 #50.557T 2 {B#% 725 100,000,0000% & HK$0.02 each of the Company, at a price of HK$0.55 per share
REER0.02 7T 2 AR RF &R (“Subscription”). The Subscription price of HK$0.55 per share
([REE]) - REEFARARMDABME0.557T represented a discount of approximately 4.68% to the average
ERMREE—TT=F=A+tHIE closing price of HK$0.577 per share as quoted on the Stock
(BIEZA) &ETER S B EBZFA Exchange for the last ten trading days up to and including 17th
Bz PR B EARAEE0.577 T EL March, 2003.
4.68% °

Annual Report 2004
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23. /A (&) 23. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

7 (B Notes: (Continued)

i & (i) (Continued)
REBER_TZT=F=A5K - RIER The Subscription was completed in March 2003. The net proceeds
EE RBESRIEFENRBE from the Subscription pursuant to the subscription agreement of
53,421,000t + HAAB%47,599,0007T approximately HK$53,421,000 were used as to approximately
REZMEMIEFEREEER AR HK$47,599,000 to satisfy the funding requirement in respect of
BREEERNRICERE - MRS the investment in a joint venture company with Zhejiang Geely
5,822,000 HIBIEASE 2 —REEE Holding Group Limited and the remaining balance of
& o HK$5,822,000 as general working capital of the Group.

(i) R=ZZTZ=FNA++EH ' Proper Glory (i) On 17th September, 2003, Proper Glory entered into an another
RN BB - IRERRGB0.7T agreement to place out 680,000,000 ordinary shares of the

Z (BIX[AIE 7 % A& & BL 680,000,000
RAEEREI - IRFEB - Proper Glory£
RARFI L —ERBE G - RERRKRG
7BH£0.77T 2 (B 15 3R #5680,000,0008 &
FRE B HO. OZTEZZK bRl
([FEZRRE]) - EFoRRBEBEFRR
HAEO. 775?13;4{’735’\%:*? T=Fh,
A+Bilt@EZA) &ETERXSA
FEH R TR 2 FHR T EERASE
0.754TCHT B 7.16% °

FEoRRBBER-_TZE=FhA5MK -
FTS 5/ I8 $ RE A8 46442,872,0007T T
ERERIMIE MR EEE 2184 -
M 4975 4 19,499,0007T Al A1EAN £ B 2
—REEESD -

HE-_ZE=F+_A=1+—HBItFE
RBETZZERG AR ZRERGE
EHEZHREER -

REZFZTMFEAA+N\BZRIBEFAK
e BB —TFRFR - BB MBE
60,000,0007T * %3 43,000,000,000/% &
FREME##50.027T 2 IR M) + AR EDE
TE %A 7585 100,000,000 7T 18 f1 Z 8 5
160,000,0007T ° A7 ELFT 5 3 A %

Company to independent investors at HK$0.7 per share. On the
same date, Proper Glory entered into a subscription agreement
with the Company to subscribe for 680,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company, at a price of HK$0.7 per
share (“Second subscription”). The Second subscription price of
HK$0.7 per share represented a discount of approximately 7.16%
to the average closing price of HK$0.754 per share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange for the last 10 trading days up to and including
16th September, 2003.

The Second subscription was completed in September 2003. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$442,872,000 were used for
expansion of the investment in Zhejiang Geely and in Shanghai
Maple and approximately HK$19,499,000 as general working
capital of the Group.

Such shares issued during the year ended 31st December, 2003
rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

A resolution was passed in the Annual General Meeting on 18th
May, 2004 to increase the authorised capital of the Company from
HK$100,000,000 to HK$160,000,000 by the addition thereto of
HK$60,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.02
each and rank pari passu with all existing shares.

3 BRI S - .

=

BRARBZ _ZZEWNF+-A=+—H There was no other movement in the share capital during the year ﬁ
LE R P 7 40 L 2 ended 31st December 2004. B
A
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HE_ZTTWF+ = =+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

24. EiE 24. RESERVES

DR E ZETER Bt
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
BT IT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZF’L.\E THE COMPANY

A—EE=F—H—H At 1st January, 2003 33,772 (108,290) (74,518)
BITRER D Issue of subscription shares 515,400 = 515,400
PR EET TR Share issue expenses (15,208) - (15,208)
FRNEBFE Net loss for the year — (10,497) (10,497)
R_EZ=F+_A=+—H At 31st December, 2003 533,964 (118,787) 415,177
FAFERFR Net loss for the year - (6,630) (6,630)
“EENF+_A=+—H At 31st December, 2004 533,964 (125,417) 408,547
BIEFS S EFIFE22E R A)E ({5 Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
2]) * NATZ IR RER BERT 9K Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
FIRE TR - WAZEARABKER paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the
N AR 2 BREFTHIA « BREREAR provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and
AEMEH DR AR S & e HRH provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
BEBAER AN 2 EE R the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the

TUE+=A=1t—H0 BERABED

ordinary course of business. At 31st December, 2004, the

AR IR 2 A 2B 408,547,000 directors are of the opinion that the reserves of the Company

T (ZZT =4 : #B¥415,177,0007T) °

(2003: HK$415,177,000).

©
H
>
5
5
c
Q
o
(0]
kel
Q
=1
N
o
S
=

available for distribution is approximately HK$408,547,000
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2T F+ = A =+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

25. RRARIER NT BN 25. ADVANCE FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
RENEERAR G HEIER AR 28 The advance from ultimate holding company of the Group and
NEEEHALER RV EETEER the Company is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term
H - ZRBEFNEEB BT Z@EA of repayment. The amount will not be repayable within the next
WEE - BB EEEBGERIIEIER twelve months from the balance sheet date and is therefore
EHIEA © shown in the balance sheet as non-current.

26. LEPRREK 26. ADVANCES FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS
REREEDHIRR 2 B AEER R The advances from minority shareholders of the Group were
RE - BEERFRBHER - unsecured, interest-free and were fully settled during the year.

7
#
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HE_ZTTWF+ = =+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

27. HEMB AT

27. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

—EENF —ZEE=F
2004 2003
BET T BT TT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HELEEFEBRE NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF:
Yz BRE R Property, plant and equipment 4,668 =
B N\ B2 Interests in associates 1,168 =
T8 Inventories 8,606 =
g 5 R H M W IR Trade and other receivables 12,768 =
FEUL R E N R F0R Amount due from a related company 239 =
IRTTHESR MRS Bank balances and cash 2,339 =
BITEE Bank borrowings (6,165) —
B 5 N EM IR Trade and other payables (12,250) =
FE DS R FIA Amounts due to minority shareholders (11,607) =
FETRA:E R | IR Amounts due to related companies (10) =
DY R R Minority interests 2,548 =
HEEEFE Net assets disposed of 2,304 -
SMMmERE Realisation of translation reserve 7 =
HEMRB AR W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 3,189 =
RE Consideration 5,500 -
ATRFIEABE AT« Total satisfied by:
e Cash 500 =
R —DEATEFIAE  Amount due to a minority shareholder 5,000 =
5,500 -
HEMBARZEES  Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries
T is as follows:
_ BEWRERE Cash consideration received 500 =
= HEZIRITHESNIEE  Bank balances and cash disposed of (2,339) =
=
: HENBRRZ Net cash outflow from disposal
= BREmhFE of subsidiaries (1,839) -
%

W
©
[«2]
>
5
5
c
Q
o
(0]
kel
Q
=1
N
o
S
=



s RMsE  Notes to the Financial Statements

S=

27.

28.

29.

HEMBAR (&)

RBEE_FENF+_A=1+—HILF
ERHEZHERRRALBEERE
#£09,220,0007T 4 %8 ] 47585 794,000

TTEERBRE -

BAEIE
N-EBENE+-—A=+—H A£H
RARRNBEFAEAEE (ZFT
FE) -

REHENRZH

EREEA
AEEAERGERERFARBEERD
FEft 2 B S BEE T AT IEE ¢

27.

28.

29.

ZE-_ZTTF+ - =+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31st
December, 2004 contributed approximately HK$9,220,000 to
the Group’s turnover and loss from operations of approximately
HK$794,000.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At 31st December, 2004, the Group and the Company did not

have any capital commitments (2003: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

As lessee
Minimum lease payments under operating lease of the Group
recognised in the income statement during the year in respect

of:
rEE
THE GROUP
—EEME —ET=F
2004 2003
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IES Premises 1,490 1,036

T,
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HE_ZTTWF+ = =+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

29.

30.

REMENZH (@

EREBEA (B

REER  AEERARRREA A
W REBRORTIIBRABAXNZA
BREEEEEALE -

29.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)
At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

rEH N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

—EENFE —ZE=F ZZIENF —TT=F

2004 2003 2004 2003

BT BT BETT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000

—FRA Within one year 1,171 1,034 719 1,022
—E=hFNA In the second to fifth

(BEEEMTE) years inclusive 904 629 - 629

2,075 1,663 719 1,651

EHRONTEARBRREE THA
MEXNzZES - BHEFHERM

o

Fal

"

bt

RKBEREE
AEE2ER_TTTEL+ - ARER
HIMERTESIROIRL 2 BEREE - Z
FrtE e EERASEEEDMEE -
HAEBAEEZESRA °

AEBARSZ BB ZEEEDL
BEREHFSNAL% 2 SRBIER/EK
&8 KX 2 AR AT A KRAE
#20,0007T 5 ER -
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30.

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are fixed for an

average of two years.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in MPF Scheme established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group

in funds under the control of trustees.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which is matched by the
employee. Both the employer’s and the employees’ contributions
are subject to a maximum of monthly earnings of HK$20,000

per employee.



s RMsE  Notes to the Financial Statements

HE—_ZTE

0. RIERIFHE (&)

31.

AEEZzHEMBEARZEEZERR
B ZRNEEE - AMBARIRES
EARF £9% 2 30% AR KB AFTEIH R
ERERARBHNZES - REBRZENK
EBIZEEERERIEREERN -

BE_ZTTMF+_A=+—HILFE
P R BR B 2 A= E (R E KA RE L)
RABHES27 000 (ZE T =4 : B
206,0007T) °

B AETE
ARRMEMBARZESEREENS
B BRI EI T
BEARNGNR_ZZE_FHRA=1+—H
ﬁifTZHX%ﬁﬁzjﬁ/\ iﬁzﬂt /;Qu%:

& ARAERA—IRBRAERE ([5
) o

)

—

Rimst &5 ERAERSEERHEBA
ARBBEZHE - KHEE2EER
ST ARARRARERMD 2B
B BRAAFRREZEERRFIALR -
EXer R R BRI B HASEE
HEBZEES  2BES RMEME
AL - BEERSEG S -

RITERIEE B R AR R EARE AR
FERERERTTEBREMEITZ
RS E - A TNSEAER

i 2 BB TAXAN30% ©

e+ — A =+—H L4 E For the year ended 31st December, 2004

30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (Continued)

31.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiary is
required to contribute 9% to 30% of the employee’s basic salary
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefit. The only
obligation of the Group with respect of the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

For the year ended 31st December, 2004, the aggregate
employer’s contributions made by the Group and charged to
the income statement are approximately HK$527,000 (2003:
HK$206,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The directors and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries
are entitled to participate in share option scheme detailed as

follows:

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 31st May, 2002, a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.

The Scheme was adopted for the purpose of providing eligible
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. All directors,
full-time employees and any other persons who, in the sole
discretion of the board of directors, have contributed or will

contribute to the Group are eligible to participate in the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

-
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HE_ZTTWF+ = =+—HIEFZE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

31. BB RERTE (22 31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

# o w3 W A

3

R A RETTER B BIK AR RIRMAZ T
fal Bt fs AR A ST 83X 2 P8 R Bk T
BT - AR T FEBRRANEK
NE B ZE#ETHRMN1I0% °

RITEAREE B AR AR 2 (ETRE
R EMAEEAER2EERLY
BRE (BB TERMAITRSE) ME
T2 - EEFT ZEABMETE
HBBARREEHTRAL% - HEEARF]
PR ERHEERIRRID

AR AR B ARER AT R AR E
TTREHIR - BRAMRKHEL B s
THEREM - ARRIR HBRER
SRIABBAERITEATZ SRAH - BB
RARZFRL AR AEEXAR
B BRRRMERSEE - MEA
BRER A B’ 1.007T -

AEIRMD cRBERESET - BT
ERMO RN R EZRR L BREES B
RHZWTHE ¢ (RN ERR L ER
B BRI AER 7 AR e AR E
RZFHWHE - RiROEE - AR
BERE -

FmE A BT 2 Bk - BRI
BB AE -
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Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme or any other share option schemes
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of

the shares of the Company in issue on the date of adoption.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and unexercised options) under the Scheme or
any other share option schemes adopted by the Company in
any twelve month period must not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period must
expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.
At the time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 5 business days from the date of offer, the offer
is delivered to that participant and the amount payable on
acceptance of options is HK$1.00.

The subscription price for the shares under the Scheme shall
be a price determined by the directors, but not less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the offer grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the

shares.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date of

the tenth anniversary of its adoption.
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31. BT E ()
—BEERAEE N2 AR RIERE
EASERERSZE—STNF+—A
=T —HIEFERAZEBHFBEREN
T

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options under the Scheme held by a director and movements

in such holdings during the year ended 31st December, 2004:

R-ZBENF R=BENEF
—A—H +=A=+-A
BRITEE e RATHE & FREH i RATHE
Exercise Outstanding Granted Cancelled Outstanding
R A fTfeHn price at during during at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1.1.2004 the year the year 31.12.2004
B
HK$
—ZTTME 23.2.2004 - 22.2.2009 0.95 - 35,000,000 - 35,000,000
“A-t=8
23rd February, 2004 23.2.2004 - 22.2.2009 0.95 - 35,000,000 - 35,000,000

F PO B AT AT (A B SR
ARZBE °

BREZESSN - BERMETEIANR - WER
BEERIEIROBRETES -

ERLBRE BT EL/BTAARR
ARAEECEEREBR  EEBEE
BT - MERAFERE 2B
ENKERERYIS © IBRHRETT R -
RABEAETZRDRBRMDEERLRA
FOMEA - MEBRITEES DRHEE
ZHEBARARMBERA © & BRE
RITE B BB R skt i - BB ARTTHE
BREE R EMERZ ERE AR -

No options were exercised by the director to subscribe for shares

in the Company during the year.

No options were granted to employees other than the director

under the Scheme since its adoption.

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in
the Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the
income statement in respect of the value of options granted in
the year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the
exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is
recorded by the Company in the share premium account.
Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date

are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

-
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HE_ZTTWNF+ = =+—HIEFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

2. BENRBEALRS

(a)

(b)

BIEARE MEIEXEGRAQA
([FaZET %)) KProper GloryR =%
ToFMNAZ+ZHEIY W=
ZE-_FXA-++H ([EKE
HA]) ek 2 ek ([REHE=D) - @
ETELTARRREHER
Fook Cheung Development Limited
(TFook Cheungl)t&Deep
Treasure R A B A T2 2E51%
A&HE - xR h B AT B3 SE Ak B AP
REETH49A M (R AR ET ¥R
—EZ=F+ A+ N\HRELE
£733R) - #&{7{E{EH%5,500,000
TATEE - ZRABEER _ZET W
F=RA=+HETEF -

6 T EE A 2 BB S S KT8
AEEHE5,000,0007T E BIER EIE
EAEEAREETERNCTEAS
#9,600,0007T 2 IR E X A1
5,000,0007T Z I ERR K ° 82 T2 88
& P15 2B 8 500,000 T #5 A 1EA
NAIZREINEBES ©

BIEAAREBETIEN T =
FHAZ+ =Bz (B
Wakl) MEIXAERAEEESE
BABHBABRES 2 B R AR 4t
EIRRRTS - e B ERRET - A
NE o RBEEWE - AEEER
SRk A HI1E B 5498 (R A A H g
IT¥R=_TZE=F+=A+N\HR
ERXERZE7330) MR ERER
#2,000,0007T + MEAETFE L -
FHEEERZ T —@AAREZEE
BEYEEH AR - BNEER
ZT-_ERHMEEEARY
0.5% °
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32. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

In accordance with an agreement entered into between the
Company, South China Industries Limited (“SCI”) and
Proper Glory on 22nd April, 2002 (the “Subscription
Agreement”) completed on 27th June, 2002 (“Completion
Date”), SCI granted a put option to the Company to dispose
of its entire 51% equity interest in Deep Treasure and its
subsidiaries to Fook Cheung Development Limited (“Fook
Cheung”) which was exercisable at an exercise price of
HK$5,500,000 within 549 days from the Completion Date
(extended to 733 days as agreed between the Company
and SCI on 18th December, 2003). Such put option was
exercised on 30th March, 2004.

Part of the sale proceeds in the sum of HK$5,000,000
generated from the disposal was used to set off in full against
the remaining balance of HK$5,000,000 of a shareholder’s
loan with a principal sum of HK$9,600,000 owing by the
Group to SCI. The remaining sale proceeds of HK$500,000
was utilised as additional working capital of the Company.

Pursuant to the management agreement entered into by
the Company with SCI on 22nd April, 2002 (“Management
Agreement”), SCI is required to provide the Group with
management services for those subsidiaries engaged in
information and technology related businesses for a term
of six years from the Completion Date. Under the
Management Agreement, the Group is required to pay a
management fee in arrears in the sum of HK$2,000,000
for the first 549 days after the Completion Date (extended
to 733 days as agreed between the Company and SCI on
18th December, 2003) and thereafter to be increased
annually at the rate equivalent to the increase in the
Composite Consumer Price Index of the 12-month period
plus an increase equivalent to 0.5% of the increase in the
turnover over such 12-month period.
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N.BERBEALRS (B) 32. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

RE-TEMF+-A=+—ALF
B BENTHRIE ERBABN
335,0007C (ZFF =4 : j&¥1,330,000

I

RIEEE R BETEAEFEGERT
A E AL @A - AREEEAR
BHRAES NEENBR AR EE
E& - WRtATEAK B HiET 25498 (K
NREEETIEN -_TT=F+=-A+
NBREERE7330) PREHIRZLE
BIREBAERT -

Ak A BRkERT 2 549 B fEmIARLE - &
BB EERT 25408 IEHART - AR
AIfERE T EZ KT AERHES T H A
LARZZ M B A ARt B3z 7 AR
BIECEB) - MR T35 HAR A< 2 B
BUE BhRETS R R T 512058 (549 B 1T
RZE7338 250 :

(Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2004, management fee of
HK$335,000 (2003: HK$1,330,000) was paid to SCI.

Under the Management Agreement, SCI shall unconditionally
and irrevocably undertake with the Group for the provision of
working capital to the Group’s subsidiaries that are engaged in
the information and technology related businesses and be solely
responsible for their operating losses for a period of 549 days
from the Completion Date (extended to 733 days as agreed
between the Company and SCI on 18th December, 2003).

For the period commencing from the expiration of 549 days
from the Completion Date and ending on the date of termination
of 549 days from the Management Agreement, if requested by
SCI, the Company shall provide or procure the provision of
funding support by way of loan to these subsidiaries provided
that the amount of funding support payable during each of the
following periods shall not exceed the following amounts (before

adjustments of extension from 549 days to 733 days):

HAR S EE

Period Amount

(e R 2 B &) BT

(No. of days after Completion Date) HK$'000

550 £ 914 550 to 914 8,000

915 £ 1,279 91510 1,279 10,000

1,280 & 1,644 1,280 to 1,644 12,000 .

1,645 = 2,009 1,645 to 2,009 14,000 ';J

2,010 2,010 16,000 :
;;
=

-
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(2 —ZETNF+ = A=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

. BERBEALRS (&) 32. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
b A F) 2 B SR TE E BARR ¢ M There are no predetermined terms of such loans to the
RAREEDISRE R R AR EKE subsidiaries except that the Company has undertaken not to
BEMER BEIEXEEEEZEWNE call for repayment of such loans during the term of the
ANRABERTEERIELHTHER) - Management Agreement. It is the intention of SCI that it would

only make request for funding support when the subsidiaries

require financial support.

MR H & B RIHE 2 7 FFook Cheungf% The Management Agreement was terminated on 30th March,
EEMHEENR _TTNE=A=FTHK 2004 upon disposal of the related subsidiaries to Fook Cheung.
J_t °

B EafiE SN - REERFERINE B 73S In addition to the above, the Group also entered into significant
ATHETERRS ° transactions with related parties during the year.
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S=

32.

BERBEALRS (&)

(1) HEEEATZEBRRZSEMANT

32. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(1) Significant transactions with related parties are summarised

below:
BEATER REME [ —EENFE —TT=F
Name of related party Nature of transactions/balances Notes 2004 2003
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
MEIXEGRAR MEBRAR M BRREDMZERE () 335 1,330
South China Industries Management fee charged by (i) 335 1,330
Limited a minority shareholder of a
subsidiary
AL EAMAERR AR AR 1 B H & )T EE TR (i) 3,001 -
Zhejiang Geely Automobile Sales of automobile parts and (ii) 3,001 -
Company Limited components to an associate
ERTHE QT (iif) 338 -
Advance to an associate (iii) 338 =
WIFEAERERR AR B E N R —EM B A RIHE (i) 19,993 -
AEBHH
Zhejiang Haoging Sales of automobile parts and (ii) 19,993 -
Automobile Manufacturing components to a subsidiary
Company Limited of an associate
AL E M BT IR [AFE N BIHE TET M (i) 7,383 -
BR AT
Zhejiang Geely Automobile Sales of automobile parts and (i) 7,383 -
Parts & Components components to a related company
Purchasing Company
Limited
HNEEMIERERRAT ERTEEQA (iif) 427 -
Geely Group Zhejiang Advance to a related company (iii) 427 -

Motorcycle Company
Limited

-
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32.

BERBEALRS (B) 32. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
BEALTEE RBME B & —EENFE —TT=F
Name of related party Nature of transactions/balances Notes 2004 2003
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
AL EANEREEBR A A] BERTHEELT (iii) 186 -
Zhejiang Geely Holding Advance to a related company (iii) 186 -
Group Company Limited
AIRMTEZEHEERAT EMERR D EARREK (iif) 5,027 —
Zhejiang Fulin Automobile Advance from a minority (iii) 5,027 -
Parts & Components shareholder of a subsidiary
Company Limited
AL EFERR QA MR MEN TREEAQF] (i) 452 -
Zhejiang Guo Mei ZHEERE (if) 452 =
Renovation Company Rental expense and rental
Limited expense payable to a
related company
BMNBBEAEREARAR E—HEEQRBRK (iii) 1,800 -
Taizhou Lugiao Mei Tian Advance from a related (iii) 1,800 -
Motorcycle Company company
Limited
Proper Glory R A R BN (iii) 3,000 =
Proper Glory Advance from the ultimate (iii) 3,000 -

holding company
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HE-_ZTTNE+— A=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2004

N.BERBEALRS (B)

(2)

(ii)

(iii)

FER S TR ERI N EE RREZ &

EEE2ZEERMISERRAE=TK

HUZ B8 °

ZEDFREEN 25 AEEEEE

NEEHREERE 2 ERFBEHR
MHiFEL7 18 19 - 21 25 %

26 °

32. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Notes:

(i) These transactions were carried out on terms determined and

agreed by both parties.

(i) The prices were determined with reference to the then

prevailing market prices and the price charged to third parties.

(iii) The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have

no fixed repayment terms.

(2) Details of the balances with related companies at the
balance sheet date are set out in notes 17, 18, 19, 21, 25

and 26.
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